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Nan Hai Corporation Limited (“Nan Hai") (the “Company”) is a corporation listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 680). On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
present to our shareholders the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

In 2020, based on its diversified core business strategic deployment, the Group
continued to operate in the areas of culture and media services, property
development and enterprise cloud services, through Dadi Media (HK) Limited
and its subsidiaries, Dadi Cinema Investment Limited and its subsidiaries and
Digicine Oristar Technology Development (Beijing) Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Dadi Media”), Nan Hai Development
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Nan Hai Development”)
and Sino-i Technology Limited (stock code: 250) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Sino-i"). In the meantime, the Group has also
engaged in businesses through Dadi News Media (HK) Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “News Media Business”) as well as Dadi
Innovation (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Innovative Business”).

2020 is a historical year when the sudden outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic
("Epidemic”) swept across the world, disrupting our normal studies, work and
life, and plunging many domestic and foreign companies into crisis. However,
when a major crisis arises, it also means a greater opportunity. Looking back
over the past year, although the Epidemic has had a huge impact on many
industries, it has also prompted many enterprises to engage in profound
reflection and optimisation, accelerating the development of many industries,
shortening what might have taken 2 to 3 years to develop to a few months,
such as e-commerce, online local services and online education. In this
situation, many traditional offline enterprises have been determined to
undergo digital transformation, while many online enterprises have been faced
with new challenges. During the year, the majority of companies went through
a stress test, testing their accumulated experience and capabilities in various
areas, as well as their managers'’ ability to cope and resist stress.
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Chairman’s Statement
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2020 was also a very challenging year for the Group. The Group continued to
navigate and expand in the midst of crisis. In terms of business direction, the
Group continues to focus on the three major industry directions of culture and
media services, enterprise cloud services and property development, as well as
further development in news media business and innovative business. Due to
the impact of the Epidemic, the Group’s revenue and results for 2020
decreased significantly as compared to 2019, mainly due to the severe impact
of the Epidemic on the cinema investment business. In addition, considering
the impact of the Epidemic on the macro economy, in line with the principle of
prudence, certain impairment arrangements were made for goodwill, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets of the Group's culture and media
segment and innovative business segment.

Under such severe circumstances, the Group has been actively optimising its
internal business, integrating and sharing resources among related businesses
within the segment, increasing cost control and expense control, and actively
developing its online business in order to survive under the adverse market
conditions. Although the Culture and Media Services segment was hit hard last
year, it was given a rare opportunity to enhance its capabilities and undergo
digital transformation. As a result of the effective internal and external
measures, the Company was able to complete and launch its cinema
resumption as soon as it resumed operation, and the business was on track
quickly. The Property Development segment has also been actively exploring
quality projects based on its existing project experience. In response to the
Epidemic, it has been controlling operating costs, optimising the progress of
construction works and trying out live streaming of property sales, with a view
to achieving sustainable development of property projects on the basis of
ensuring stable operation of the Company. Leveraging the trend towards
online retail driven by the Epidemic, the Enterprise Cloud Services segment
launched a global portal, increased its promotion of digital commerce business
and combined its cloud computing technology to support its service, resulting
in rapid business growth during the year. The News Media Business segment
continued to develop its internet news and lifestyle services business, focusing
on online marketing in response to the Epidemic, thus successfully establishing
itself as a local media leader. Moving away from the traditional offline retail
model, Crabtree & Evelyn under the Innovative Business has used digital
platforms and social channels to promote its products and the new products
have received widespread acclaim and achieved satisfactory sales volumes.
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Since July, as China demonstrated its resilience and vitality in the prevention
and control of the Epidemic and the recovery of the economy, market
confidence was gradually restored and the industry showed gradual recovery.
The trend of changing market conditions driven by the Epidemic will not end
abruptly. New technologies and products will continue to emerge and
competition will intensify. The Group will continue to focus on the three major
industry directions of culture and media services, enterprise cloud services and
property development, and actively seek development opportunities in the
areas of news media and innovative business. At the same time, the Group will
continue to explore the OMO (Online — Merge — Offline) business model,
make use of internet technology and big data operations to upgrade and
transform its existing business, continue to improve operational efficiency,
enhance the Company'’s profitability and promote its sustainable development.

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to the shareholders for
their concern and support, and also to the Board and all staff of the Company
for their dedication and contribution. The management will spare no effort to
lead the Company steadily into the future.

Yu Pun Hoi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continued to operate in the areas of culture and media services,
property development and enterprise cloud services, through Dadi Media, Nan
Hai Development and Sino-i. In the meantime, the Group has also engaged in
businesses through News Media Business and Innovative Business.

During the year, revenue of the Group was approximately HK$10,010.8 million
(2019: HKS$9,321.2 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 7.4% as compared to the corresponding period of last year. Loss
for the year of the Group was approximately HK$2,529.7 million (2019:
HKS$641.4 million). The loss was primarily due to the impact of the Epidemic on
the business of the culture and media services segment, and also, as a matter
of prudence, the Group made a provision for impairment of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets in the
culture and media services and innovative business segments of approximately
HK$1,107.3 million. Such impairment was calculated in accordance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 36 — Impairment of Assets. The provision for
impairment was a non-cash item and had no impact on the operations and
working capital of the Group. The net assets of the Group as at 31 December
2020 were approximately HKS$3,324.7 million (2019: HKS$5,294.3 million).

The Group issued credit enhanced notes in aggregate amount of US$850
million in May and June 2020, which were listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. The successful issuance of these notes has improved the debt
structure of the Group.

During the year, as China demonstrated its resilience and vitality in the
prevention and control of the Epidemic and the recovery of the economy,
market confidence was gradually restored and the industry showed gradual
recovery. The Group’s business will continue to improve in the long term as
consumers’ disposable income and appetite for cultural and personal care
products increases. The Group will continue to take measures to control its
costs and expenses, and make every effort to promote the recovery process
and improve the performance of each segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the revenue of this business segment was approximately
HKS$1,157.9 million (2019: HKS4,652.8 million). Loss before income tax was
approximately HK$2,842.1 million (2019: HK$868.8 million).

In 2020, in accordance with the Chinese government’s directive to prevent and
control the Epidemic, all cinemas nationwide were closed from late January
2020 and resumed operations gradually in July 2020. The recovery of China's
film market after the resumption showed that watching movies in theatres
remained one of the most important forms of entertainment for Chinese
audiences. Satisfactory performance in box office has once again restored the
confidence of film industry practitioners and has given confidence to the
continued steady development of China’s film industry in the post-epidemic
period.

In 2020, the national gross box office of the film market was approximately
RMB18.603 billion (excluding service charges), representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 68.7%, while the total admission of audience was
approximately 549 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 68.2%. As a result of the foregoing, during the year, the
operating income of cinema operation and cinema media advertising of this
business segment decreased significantly as compared to the corresponding
period of 2019, and the box office revenue of the cinema business of this
business segment including tax amounted to approximately RMB958 million
(excluding service charges), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 70.8%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E12 B 575 & 71

GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF CINEMA OPERATION OF THE GROUP

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

During the year, box office of the cinema business of this business segment
contributed to approximately 6.6% of the national box office revenue (tax
included), representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 1.1%, with the
admission of audiences of approximately 27.56 million, maintaining its No. 2 in
ranking among cinema investment and management companies throughout
China. As at 31 December 2020, this business segment had an aggregate of
449 cinemas with 2,828 screens operating in 29 provinces (autonomous
regions, municipalities) and 182 cities across China.

During the period of closure, our cinemas under this business segment
implemented a series of proactive measures in response to the Epidemic. We
paid attention to the state’s preferential policies for the industry and strived to
obtain various subsidies; we also actively negotiated with landlords for better
terms such as rent waivers and reductions. Internally, we fully mobilised our
staff and used live streaming platforms to interact with film fans, conducting
content sharing and online retail. Benefiting from the continuous improvement
of the online functions of our own channels, our cinemas were able to offer a
wide range of products and services to their core members through a variety
of marketing and promotional activities, further enhancing member loyalty.

In addition, our business segment focused on product technology and IT
system upgrade and digital transformation, upgrading the customer version of
its own channel (APP and mini-programs), enhancing the full cycle operational
capability for members and optimising user experience. We also continued to
optimise our business and management processes and promoted online
processes to improve management efficiency. As a result of the internal and
external measures, the Company was able to complete and reopen its cinemas
as soon as it resumed operation, and business was back on track quickly.

Upon resumption of operation, this business segment strictly complied with
the relevant national regulations on epidemic prevention, while continuing to
implement the OMO (Online — Merge — Offline) business model, further
pursuing its “Film +" strategy and quickly implementing the OMO business
model on a pilot basis. This business segment 1) cooperated with other
merchants in the same area to provide more and better local services to users;
2) cooperated with major online platforms to gain new users through the
traffic portals of these platforms; 3) used a variety of operation tools (APP,
official accounts (2 %2 %), mini-programs, etc.) to reach more users, better
serve users and increase user activity; 4) generated interactive sales with
members through live streaming, fans communities; and 5) continued to
explore the operation of non-film diversified content.

In this business segment, Dadi Media (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Dadi Film”) under Dadi Media, continued to pursue
a steady and yet progressive approach to creation and production during the
Epidemic, and continued to refine the post-release work of completed projects
to lay a solid foundation for the upcoming release. In terms of original project
development and external project collaboration, we were actively involved in
the development of original projects and in negotiating partnerships with
outstanding external teams to prepare topics for our next projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E12 B 575 & 71

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Epidemic has brought unprecedented challenges to the cinema industry,
but in the midst of the crisis, a unique opportunity has arisen for % /& 2 £
H# R (It 5) AR 2 (Digicine Oristar Technology Development (Beijing)
Company Limited*) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “Oristar”) in its
process of transformation. Oristar has been positioned as an internet service
company for the cinema industry, and has deepened and optimized the
revenue management platform of the Oristar cloud cinema (Software as a
Service (“SaaS")-based cinema digitalization total solution) to provide cinemas
with a closed-loop support for business including ticket sales, retail,
membership management, membership marketing, cinema operation
decision-making support and big data Bl (business intelligence) services, and
offer complete mobile solutions for consumers and operators in respect of
APP, H5, mini programs, etc.

During the year, Oristar completed an “error-free” contactless online system
switching for cinemas of the Group and realized the first “non-inductive” cloud-
based upgrade in the domestic cinema industry. At the same time, Oristar
completed the switching and transfer of information of nearly 100 external
customers in respect of the revenue management platform product of the
Oristar cloud, which have won positive feedback from customers, reflecting
Oristar's spirit of being the first and being innovative as well as its positive
industry influence. At the same time, Oristar has further optimized the
capabilities of the “Oristar cloud” platform and continued to improve and
innovate in terms of empowering cinema marketing, basic revenue
management, and in-depth membership operations.

With the continuous expansion of product capabilities and market influence, as
at 31 December 2020, Oristar provided services for approximately 1,947
cinemas, covering approximately 12,500 halls in 31 provinces (autonomous
regions, municipalities) across China.

On 22 December 2020, Sino-i and the Company entered into the sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which Sino-i has conditionally agreed to
purchase (or procure the purchase) and the Company has conditionally agreed
to sell (or procure the sale) to Sino-i the entire equity interest of &5 £ BH
% B (db ®)AF R A & (Digicine Oristar Technology Development (Beijing)
Company Limited*), for the consideration of RMB488 million. Such transaction
is still subject to, amongst other things, the approval of independent
shareholders of Sino-i. Upon completion of the above-mentioned transaction,
the financial performance and financial position of Oristar will still be
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the Group. For
details, reference shall be made to the Company’s announcement dated 22
December 2020.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

In 2020, China overtook the United States as the largest box office market in
the world. This demonstrates the effectiveness of China’s anti-epidemic
measures and the vitality and potential of the Chinese film market, even with
the impact of the Epidemic. We remain optimistic about the stable
development of the China'’s film market. On the other hand, in 2021, a number
of high quality films will be presented to audiences and with the continuous
development of China’s film market, the themes of the films will become more
diversified. The in-depth development of the Chinese comics, the comedy
films, the exploration of science fiction films and crime films, and the extension
of movie IPs to multiple genres will be the new trend of new films to be
released in 2021, and all these factors will further drive the China’s box office to
record highs.

This business segment will capitalise on the team spirit and technical product
reserves honed during the Epidemic to capture the momentum of stable
market development. This business segment continues to explore the
development and utilisation of cinema scenes, collaborate with a number of
quality content providers and build a film-based consumer entertainment
platform in an efficient and effective manner to meet the consumer needs in
various aspects such as business model, scenes, products and services. With
the view of satisfying the high standard and quality of cinema projects, Dadi
Film will also actively develop distribution channels for its projects, promote
concrete cooperation with internet and other channels, integrate online and
offline resources, deepen the implementation of its OMO strategic plan for
cinemas, provide assistance to cinemas in terms of membership operation,
cost reduction and efficiency enhancement, so as to achieve more business
revenue. At the same time, we will continue to optimise the business and
organisational structure, reduce operating and management costs and
enhance the operational efficiency and profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, revenue of this business segment was approximately
HKS$7,557.1 million (2019: HK$3,301.0 million) and profit before income tax was
approximately HK$3,015.0 million (2019: HK$2,762.7 million). The increase of
revenue was mainly due to the recognition of the income of Phase 4 of “The
Peninsula” during the year.

“The Peninsula” Project in Shenzhen

The “Peninsula”, a flagship project of Nan Hai Development, is located in the
prime triangle zone formed by Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong cooperation free
trade zone, Houhai financial and commercial center and Shekou free trade
zone. It is bordered by Shekou Fishing Port to the west, Shekou Mountain
Lookout Park to the north, Dongjiaotou Reclamation to the east, near the
Western Corridor Port site, and the waterfront promenade and Shenzhen Bay
to the south, enjoying a unique mountain and sea view of the Shenzhen Bay
Area. The project is developed in five phases with a total gross floor area of
over one million sq.m., establishing a diversified business environment
including high-end housing, intelligent business, smart hotel, office sharing,
creative theater and yacht club.

Phases 1 and 2 of "The Peninsula” have been sold out. The sale of Phase 3 was
launched in April 2016 and almost sold out. The sale of Phase 4 was launched
on 23 April 2019 with the sell through rate reaching 82% on that day. As at 31
December 2020, accumulated sales amounted to approximately RMB7,539
million. The project is currently under renovation and is scheduled for delivery
in mid-2021. The Group is holding 55,800 sg.m. of the commercial portion to
establish businesses including smart hotel, intelligent business and shared
offices according to the idea of “world citizen style and stay with the trend”.
Operation is scheduled to commence in late 2021.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

“Free Man Garden” Project in Guangzhou

Located at the Guangzhou airport economic development area, adjacent to
Baiyun International Airport and Guangzhou North Comprehensive Passenger
Transportation Hub, “Free Man Garden” project of Nan Hai Development in
Guangzhou creates an eco-friendly residential area of 1.5 million square meters
in Baiyun district, Guangzhou featuring new environment-friendly concepts,
scarce urban green belts and excellent community operations. The project will
be developed into a large integrated leisure residential area for approximately
10,000 households with a 100,000 sg.m. central green lawn, a 20,000 sg.m.
clubhouse, a 2,000 sq.m. heated swimming pool, a basketball court, a yoga
studio, a table tennis court, a large gymnasium, and two kindergartens and a
public school with a nine-year education system. The “Free Man Garden”
project comprises a total of eight phases, of which Phases 1, 2, 4 and 7 have
been almost sold out. As at 31 December 2020, a total of 725 flats in Phase 5
and 6 with an aggregate area of approximately 93,257sq.m. were sold for sales
amount of approximately RMB2,296 million. Phase 3 known as “Freedom Lane
(B E)" with a gross floor area of approximately 36,000 sq.m. is self-owned
for providing comprehensive services of catering, entertainment and culture
and commenced operation with a grand opening held on 28 December 2019.
Currently, famous brands including Dadi Cinema, McDonald's and RT-MART
have opened and banks, post offices, medical stations, cultural centres and
other amenities are also available.

Moreover, the Group has created a new model of operation in real estate
business and developed quality projects in various ways. The “Jinghu
Boulevard” Project sitting to the east of “Free Man Garden” in Guangzhou in
which the Group has invested in is currently with an aboveground floor area of
approximately 80,000 sg.m. and will be developed into a commercial complex
integrating catering, hotel, entertainment, etc. Leveraging on the experience
accumulated in the development of “The Peninsula” and “Free Man Garden”
projects, the Group is actively exploring strategic cooperation in respect of a
number of projects and invest in the construction of various quality projects in
order to materialize a steady and sustainable development of the property
development business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

During the year, Nan Hai Development also launched a series of measures to
respond to the Epidemic, including operational cost control, optimization of
the pace of project construction, active communication with property owners
on delivery of properties and trial selling of “Free Man Garden” through
livestream to ensure the Company’s stable operation. At the same time, the
outbreak of the Epidemic has also put forward new requirements for the
development of the property service industry, and has accelerated the increase
of demand for services. The rational division of internal functional areas,
community ancillary facilities, the concept of health inherent in the products
and high-quality services have demonstrated significant values. Through this
“Epidemic War”, the property service company of Nan Hai Development has
comprehensively improved its service quality and capability in multiple
dimensions such as emergency response, material deployment and innovative
technology application, and promoted service loyalty and brand value, so as to
offer quality experience.

PROSPECTS

The Epidemic outbreak in early 2020 has a significant impact on the domestic
economic development and the operation of the real estate market in China.
Overall, although the economy is facing major challenges, the central policy
level maintains real estate regulation and control, and holds on to the
unchanged position of "houses are for living but not for speculation (& {F T
)", In order to promote the stable operation of the real estate market, the
central and local governments have introduced a number of financial policies
and prudent monetary policies to support the real estate industry in certain
cities. In response to the impact of the Epidemic, the national macroeconomic
policies have enhanced countercyclical adjustments and local policies have
been more flexible. With the improving situation of the Epidemic prevention
and control and the orderly progress of resumption of work and production, as
well as the release of backlog of housing demand after the Epidemic eases, the
real estate market in China continues to recover, especially the land markets in
major cities.

With a forward-looking strategic mindset, Nan Hai Development shall actively
grasp the opportunities of national strategic focus areas and urban
development, continue to cultivate the core city cluster of the Greater Bay Area
and actively seek development opportunities in the Yangtze River Delta region.
In terms of land reserve, Nan Hai Development has been prudent and proactive
in acquiring land resources through a variety of land acquisition strategies,
including co-operations, acquisitions, urban renewal and strategic acquisitions,
in addition to tendering and auctioning. In a highly competitive industry
environment, Nan Hai Development insists on “putting products at the core
and customers first” and continues to refine and improve its products and
customer satisfaction. In addition to improving our products, we are actively
responding to customer demand for quality, further enhancing the reputation
of the Peninsula brand and laying a solid foundation for continued
improvement in our industry competitiveness. In 2021, we will focus on
upgrading our talent, enhancing operations and risk management, and
establishing a sound foundation for sustainable development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

This business segment provided a comprehensive digital marketing, digital
business solutions and cloud computing infrastructure services to corporate
clients in China. The main products/services included domain name, public
cloud, mini program mall, mailbox, digital marketing, etc., covering various
aspects such as infrastructure, website building tools and services, digital
marketing and online transactions as required by enterprises for digital
operation.

For the small and medium-sized customers, we provide standardised enterprise
service tools in the form of SaaS, as well as relatively standardised and yet
customised services. We have integrated the quality partners and resources in
the industry to create a mature and stable product ecosystem to meet the
individual needs of our customers as far as possible. For strategic clients in
various industries, we provide personalised, high-end customised services
across the entire industry chain through our sub-brand “CE Ultimate (/R 1=

2y

Having made unremitting efforts over time, we have established a nationwide,
industry-wide, omni-channel business system that enabled us to reach
customers in a timely and effective manner. At the same time, we have set up
more than 80 branches to form a localised service operation network across
the country, providing face-to-face rapid response and localised delivery to our
customers and effectively solving the problems of “the last kilometer” of
corporate services.

In 2020, with the gradual containment of the Epidemic, the trend towards
online personal consumption and the digitalisation of business operations was
evident, and the volume of export business experienced a rapid growth. In
addition to the existing full network responsive portal and foreign trade portal,
e B) D BEHE IR 15 B BR 2 &) (CE Dongli Technology Company Limited, “CE
Dongli") under this business segment has launched a global portal business.
Through its own domestic and foreign trade SEO (Search Engine Optimization)
marketing products and Google SEM (Search Engine Marketing) products, CE
Dongli effectively met the online display and marketing needs of different
customers in domestic and foreign trade.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Epidemic has greatly accelerated the process of online retail, resulting in
an urgent need for the shift of retail outlets which were originally offline only in
all sectors to online operation. Manufacturers of different brands/merchants of
origin urgently needed an online presence to communicate with consumers
across the country in order to run private domain traffic. CE Dongli has
strengthened the promotion of digital commerce business, providing
customers with an integrated e-commerce solution to help them open up
online and offline sales channels and better meet the needs of multi-scene and
multi-channel operation in the digital era. Coupled with the underlying cloud
computing technology support services of 1t RETAIEIE = B R MT G R A A)
(Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information Company Limited, “Xinnet"), CE Dongli
helped customers to achieve better business growth.

During the year, with CE Dongli and Xinnet being its main operating entities,
this business segment was committed to the development of cloud services
for corporate digitalization and smart operation by providing comprehensive
laaS (Infrastructure as a Service), SaaS application, corporate e-commerce
services, “corporate digitalization transformation” total solutions and big
databased business intelligence cloud services to China market. During the
year, revenue of this business segment was approximately HK$966.4 million
(2019: HK$957.4 million). Profit before income tax was approximately HK$25.9
million (2019: loss before income tax of HK$68.0 million). The profit was
primarily attributable to 1) this business segment’s various products, which
effectively met the urgent need of customers to start online operations quickly
under the pressure of the Epidemic, significantly boosting the number of users
and enhancing sales efficiency; 2) this business segment’s continuous
investment in research and development of production platforms in recent
years, which has improved production efficiency and reduced labour input per
unit of product, thereby improving gross profit margin; and 3) the various
measures taken by this business segment to reduce management and
administrative expenses, enhance efficiency, reduce costs, pursue and enjoy
various concessions and waivers in accordance with relevant government
policies to minimise the impact of the Epidemic during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
CE Dongli

With 20 years’ service experience, CE Dongli has a SaaS product system that
meets the digital needs of enterprises in China and has built up a large
business and localization service network. At the same time, it has integrated
leading partners from various industries to build a market for corporate
services, providing enterprises in China with enterprise digital business
solutions with professional technology and comprehensive services.

During the year, CE Dongli had the following key initiatives:

Firstly, self-service website building products were launched, forming a
complete product spectrum for large and medium-sized customers to small
and micro customers, in order to meet the different needs of customers of
various scales and expand the number of potential users while enhancing user
experience. Over 10,000 paid users have developed templates for website
building during the year.

Secondly, in response to the trend of online enterprise marketing, the existing
SEO business was integrated with the portal business and other third party
products into different product combinations and solutions. During the year,
the marketing products grew by approximately 22.45%, with increase of
approximately 70.68% in the fourth quarter when compared to the fourth
quarter of 2019,

Thirdly, with the significant growth of China's export data in 2020 and strong
demand from customers for foreign trade marketing, CE Dongli re-optimized
its existing foreign trade portal and Google SEM business and integrated with
other third party resources to form a new solution. The launch of the new
solution was highly recognized by the market, bringing a total number of
customers to over 8,600.

Fourthly, with the far-reaching impact of the Epidemic on the retail industry, CE
Dongli has stepped up its research and development and marketing efforts in
the digital commerce business, and has a stable service capability in
conducting major transactions; through cooperation with third parties, CE
Dongli has achieved the integration of mobile payment, logistics and other
related services, helping customers to fully integrate the information flow,
capital flow and logistics of e-commerce business; during the year, the digital
commerce business has established a customer operation team aimed at
making customers successful, helping customers to complete the entire
operation system from WeChat authentication, payment opening, shop
construction (renovation) and shop marketing and promotion, which can help
traditional customers to quickly establish an online and offline integrated
operation system. During the year, there were a total of 1,348 new customers,
representing an increase of approximately 239.43% when compared with 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Xinnet

During the year, Xinnet continued to serve domestic medium, small and micro
enterprises through online, direct sales and a nationwide agent channel
system. In addition to business such as domain name management, public
cloud laaS, mailbox, etc,, it also continues to expand the enterprise market in
the area of website building and corporate application services. It continues to
enrich the product line in respect of public cloud products, adding products
including Redis, RabbitMQ, cloud backup and big data in order to meet the
needs of users for PaaS (Platform as a Service) products. The scale of the
information center continues to expand. In addition to the existing three
regions of Northern China |, Il, and Hong Kong, the scale of resources of the
public cloud continues to increase by adding three regions in the Northern
China, so as to meet the growing business needs. At the same time, in view of
the weak technical capabilities and strong business needs of medium, small
and micro enterprises, as the first domestic company to propose the concept
of enterprise cloud service center, it reaches users with the most direct SaaS
application, at the same time covering data products of basic cloud resource,
which has become one of the few suppliers in China of overall cloud service
product, which assists medium, small and micro enterprises to achieve digital
transformation.

PROSPECTS

The management of this business segment believes that “Epidemic prevention
and control” will continue to be a major theme for the entire community in
2021. At the macro level, the domestic economy will gradually recover and
return to normal growth (the International Monetary Fund estimates that
China’s GDP growth rate will be approximately 8% in 2021), while the export
business of enterprises in China will continue to grow rapidly due to the spread
of the Epidemic abroad.

We also note that the Epidemic will greatly accelerate the digital
transformation of enterprises in China, which will have a profound impact on
their brand building, channels, retailing, membership management and
interaction. The Epidemic has significantly changed consumers’ lifestyle and
spending habits. The variety and frequency of online shopping will increase
significantly, and there will be a shift from in-store purchases to online ordering
and home delivery. The population of online consumers is rapidly expanding,
online shopping is no longer the exclusive domain of young people, more
elderly people will also join online shopping. The process of building brand
awareness has changed dramatically, with consumers gradually moving from
offline shop displays and advertising to self-selecting information, watching
live streams and forming relatively closed communities. Changes in consumer
behaviour and habits will affect business activities and boundaries: 1. corporate
brands will pay more attention to online displays and online placement; 2. with
the increasing cost of online traffic, low-cost and sustainable revenue-
generating private domain traffic operation and member interaction will
become an important business capability for enterprises; 3. enterprises not
only need to develop their own online sales, but also need to integrate their
existing offline channels and terminals to help them complete their online
transformation; and 4. retail shops will place more emphasis on digital business
capabilities such as online display, online promotion, online transactions and
maintaining customer relationships.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS (Continued)

In light of above changes in the macro economy, consumer habits and
business needs, we will make the following strategic and operational
adjustments and initiatives:

Firstly, we will transform into a “digital marketing” business. On top of our
existing portal business, we will continue to optimise our existing SEO business
and integrate the product capabilities of our third-party partners such as SEM
and marketing automation to further develop a new product portfolio and
solutions to drive this business segment’s transformation from a website
builder to an integrated digital marketing service provider.

Secondly, we will focus on the “digital commerce” business. We believe that
building our own e-commerce portal is an important means for shops to
achieve online sales and for companies to operate private traffic and to interact
with consumers in the future. We will continue to push forward the
development of our “digital commerce” business. By 2021, we aim to be a first-
tier company in this field.

We understand that a comprehensive SaaS product and service requires solid
internet technology and data platform capabilities. In the future, based on an
in-depth understanding of the business environment of customers in different
industries, this business segment will continue to increase its investment in
data centres, cloud computing technology, automated operation and
maintenance technology, big data technology and intelligent marketing
technology to comprehensively enhance its core technology capabilities and
further develop and optimise products and services for the digital intelligent
operation and business of enterprises. In the future, we will make use of cloud
computing, the middle structure of business (375 &) and SaaS applications
to develop digital marketing, data analytics and e-commerce operations
services to help our traditional industry customers achieve digital
transformation, better respond to changes in consumer demand and meet the
challenges of the digital era.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NEWS MEDIA BUSINESS

Business Review

There are two business divisions under the news media business, namely
"HKO1" and “Duowei Media". During the year, revenue of this business segment
was approximately HK$102.3 million (2019: HK$89.6 million) and loss before
income tax was approximately HK$288.3 million (2019: HK$387.9 million).

Based in Hong Kong, "HKO1" has more than 780 employees. It is a pioneer of
advocacy media, aiming at creating an internet lifestyle platform, a brand new
idea of combining internet with news media business, for Hong Kong people.
During the year, this business segment continued to develop its internet news
and lifestyle services business and successfully secured a leading position in
the local media. According to ComScore, a world-renowned internet traffic
monitoring platform, "HKO1" ranked first in the News/Information — General
News category in terms of total monthly visitors, ahead of other local media. At
the same time, "HKO1" has ranked No. 1 in terms of downloads in the news
category for months, demonstrating its continued influence.

In terms of business performance, daily active users of the webpages and
mobile applications of this business segment reached over 1.9 million on
average, representing an increase of approximately 25% as compared to last
year. The number of active users was over 2.58 million at the peak. In respect of
page views, the average number of daily page views of the webpages and
mobile applications reached over 38 million, more than double of last year's
average. Page views approached 59 million at the peak. In addition, as at 31
December 2020, the number of members of this business segment was over
1.5 million, representing an increase of 50% as compared to the same period
last year.

With high quality news reports, this business segment achieved remarkable
results by winning a number of news awards, including four awards from the
international Telly Awards in the USA; six awards from The 20th Consumer
Rights Reporting Awards presented by the Consumer Council, the Hong Kong
Journalists Association and the Hong Kong Press Photographers Association,
including winning the “Most awards among the online media news
organizations (/i & 1 82 & % {5 H # #8)"; and 12 awards from “The Spark
Awards 2020".

This business segment also continued to expand its lifestyle services platform
with the launch of the “EC Easy (28RiEasy)” health information platform, the “01
Space (0122 f&])” events platform and the new macroeconomic “E F ICON *
mobile app in the fourth quarter of 2020, which provides investors with
comprehensive economic information, analysis and commentary on financial
trends and global economic situation. At the same time, we will continue to
develop the "HKshopNet (—#84] %) shopping guide platform, the “LetZ Goal
(B5Eh)” running service platform and will also focus on developing the
members’ economic circle and strive to create an exclusive ecosystem for “01
Members (01 & 8)".
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E12 B 575 & 71

NEWS MEDIA BUSINESS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

Under the impact of the Epidemic, “HKO1" has made rapid changes to meet the
market environment, focusing its marketing strategy on online and launching a
number of online and offline activities in “01 Space (01 ZEf&)". At the same time,
“HK01” continued to launch a number of brand-oriented activities such as the “Jt
&) Jk " series and online activities such as “01 fx B B 4R £ K 48" Despite the
postponement or suspension of many offline activities in the market due to the
Epidemic, this business segment was able to successfully organise the first “01
Gold Medal Awards (01 2% 2 E)K#8)", with the winners announced in
December 2020 and the award presentation ceremony in January 2021, to
recognise Hong Kong companies that have struggled through adversity and to
highlight the leading position of “HKO1".

Prospects

In 2021, it will be the 5th anniversary of "HKO1” and this business segment will
be embarking on a series of online and offline promotion activities and will
continue to develop its leading position and influence in the Hong Kong media
industry while leveraging internet technology to create a lifestyle platform for
Hong Kong people. In particular, “"HKO1” mobile app will undergo a major
change in the first quarter of 2021. The updated version will enhance the
application’s big data to achieve accurate content delivery, which is expected
to improve user experience and advertising conversion effect, and enhance
advertisers’ confidence and satisfaction. At the same time, the new version will
include various social interaction elements, allowing users to disseminate
information to the public and friends through the "HKO1" platform.

The newly launched mobile apps “ B F ICON" and “EC Easy (&Rl Easy)” focus
on economic, financial and health news information, such mobile apps
coupled with various tools and services may expand advertising revenue
streams.

In 2021, despite the continued impact of the Epidemic, we will overcome the
difficulties and establish “HKO1" as the most influential online lifestyle platform
in Hong Kong, bringing a new online and offline experience across media to
Hong Kong people.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INNOVATIVE BUSINESS

Business Review

During the year, revenue of this business segment was approximately HK$147.6
million (2019: HK$255.5 million) and loss before income tax was approximately
HKS$716.2 million (2019: HK$382.3 million), of which approximately HK$496.1
million represented impairment of goodwill and property, plant and
equipment.

Following the completion of the restructuring in 2019 to exit its traditional
retail model, the focus for Crabtree & Evelyn in 2020 was on building awareness
for the relaunch of the brand and expanding its customer base by taking on
new customers. This was to be achieved through the use of digital platforms,
social channels, partnerships and influencers or key opinion leaders. In 2020,
the new customer base grew by 803% as compared to 2019 and year-on-year
sales in the e-commerce channel also increased by 67% as compared to 2019,
laying a good foundation for future conversion of new customers.

In October 2020, the first global exploration collection was launched from Bali,
this collection included both personal care as well as artisan lifestyle products
made by craftsmen in local communities in Bali with a portion of profits from
selected products going back into those communities through our partnership
with a local charity. Management was pleased with the sell through of the
collection, it having produced several star products and valuable learnings for
future exploration collections.

In September 2020, the brand relaunched into Taiwan through a leading third
party sales platform, it was intended as a soft launch but delivered results
beyond expectations and showed a strong demand for the brand in the
market.

During the year, the effects of the Epidemic on Crabtree & Evelyn were limited
due to its sales channels being predominantly online and its products
remaining in demand from customers not able to travel or in a lock down
situation. It was also able to adapt its supply chain to ensure that there were no
significant disruptions to product availability throughout the year.

Prospects

Leveraging on the momentum in brand awareness and customer acquisition
generated in 2020, Crabtree & Evelyn will continue to grow on its key metrics
of sales and customer base growth. As well as its own sales platforms, the
brand will further increase distribution channels through key third parties in
2021.

Following the completion of product registrations in Mainland China, the
brand will launch itself domestically in the Mainland China market in 2021. A
second global exploration collection from a new destination will also be
launched in 2021 following the success and learnings of the first exploration
collection from Bali.
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E12 B 575 & 71

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group continued to adopt prudent funding and treasury policies. As at 31
December 2020, net assets attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$2,869.7 million (2019: approximately
HK$4,696.0 million), including cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$8,098.0 million (2019: approximately HK$11,720.6 million) which were
mainly denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. As at 31
December 2020, the Group’s aggregate borrowings were approximately
HK$15,763.0 million (2019: approximately HK$18,853.0 million), of which
approximately HK$11,105.6 million (2019: approximately HK$10,625.9 million)
were bearing interest at fixed rates while approximately HK$4,657.4 million
(2019: approximately HK$8,227.1 million) were at floating rates. The Group has
not entered into any interest rate hedge during the year.

The gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated as the net debt divided by
the total equity plus net debt was approximately 69.75% (2019: approximately
57.40%).

As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitment of the Group was
approximately HK$595.6 million (2019: approximately HK$525.9 million), of
which approximately HK$18.1 million would be used for the renovation of self-
owned property, approximately HK$178.9 million would be used as capital
expenditures for the expansion of its cinema business and approximately
HK$398.6 million would be used for property development.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's contingent liabilities were approximately
HK$21.7 million in connection with the guarantees given to secure credit
facilities (2019: approximately HK$21.1 million).

As at 31 December 2020, certain right-of-use assets, buildings, other property,
plant and equipment, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale, investment properties, financial asset at FVOC| and
bank deposits with a total net carrying value of approximately HK$12,673.3
million were pledged to secure the credit facilities granted to the Group (2019:
approximately HK$15,083.3 million). In addition, trading securities with a
carrying value of approximately HK$0.2 million (2019: approximately HK$0.2
million) and certain shares of several subsidiaries were pledged and bank
accounts were charged for securing the Group's credit facilities.

Details of the bank and other borrowings and financing of the Group are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.

The Board considers that the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
satisfy its future working capital and other financing requirements for at least
the next twelve months from the reporting date. Details of which shall be
referred to in note 2 to the financial statements of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES

The Group operated mainly in the PRC, and its operating expenses and
revenue were primarily denominated and settled in Renminbi. The Group
adopted Hong Kong dollars as its reporting currency, and the reported assets,
liabilities and results may be affected by Renminbi exchange rate. As the
majority of the Group’s borrowings were primarily denominated in US dollars
and Renminbi, it was exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Group will still
keep reviewing and monitoring the fluctuation in exchange rates between
relevant currencies and consider using foreign exchange hedging instruments
from time to time to minimize the risk exposure arising from changes in
exchange rates. The Group will also proactively choose the type of currency for
assets and liabilities based on its prejudgment of currency trend under
practicable circumstances. During the year, the Group has not entered into any
foreign exchange hedging instruments.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company employs and remunerates its employees based on their
qualifications, experience and performance. In addition to basic salary
payments, other benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory
provident fund, group medical insurance, group personal accident insurance
and examination leave. Employees are eligible to be granted share options
under the Company's share option scheme at the discretion of the Board of
the Company. In general, salary review is conducted annually. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had 15,899 employees (2019: 18,789 employees).
The salaries of and allowances for employees for the year ended 31 December
2020 were about approximately HK$1,564.6 million (2019: HK$2,222.0 million).
The Group focuses on providing skill and quality training for various levels of
staff, and provides on-the-job capability training to its staff; in respect of staff
quality, corresponding training on personal work attitude and work habits is
also provided.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

The Board herein present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During the year,
the Group was principally engaged in culture and media services, property
development, enterprise cloud services, news media business and innovative
business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Particulars of the Group's revenue and segment information for the year are set
out in notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing is provided in the Risk Management and Internal Control section on
pages 72 to 78 of this annual report and a fair review of the Group’s business
during the year, and the probable future business development of each
segment of the Company are provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 8 to 31 of this annual report. Also, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in note 48 to
the financial statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2020 are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis section. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Five-Year Financial Summary on
page 268 of this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Group's
environmental policies, relationships with its consumers and employees and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are all contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 79 to 112 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 121.

The directors of the Company have resolved not to recommend the
declaration of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the
year ended 31 December 2019: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 268.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
December 2020 are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements
respectively.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS AND FINANCING

Details of the bank and other borrowings and financing of the Group as at 31
December 2020 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

During the year, details of the movements in share capital and share premium
of the Company are set out in notes 34 and 36 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

During the year, details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of the Company’s reserves available for
distribution was approximately HKS$1,296.3 million. In addition, the Company's
share premium account with a balance of approximately HK$11,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s sales to the five largest customers and purchases from the five
largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2020 accounted for less than
30.00% of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any donations.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 41 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The director below is deemed to be interested in the business which competes
or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with business of the Group
and is required to make disclosure of interests pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules:

Ms. Liu Rong, an executive director of the Company, is a director and ultimate
shareholder of BER AM EHZITERMDBRE AT (GD Cinema Circuit
Company Limited*) (“GD Cinema Circuit”). GD Cinema Circuit invests in cinema
business and therefore is deemed to compete with the cinema investment
business of the Group. However, the Board believes that the competition does
not pose any material threat to the Group's business prospects due to the fact
that the cinemas operated by the Group and the cinemas invested by the
above-mentioned director who is interested in the competing business focus
on different market segments.

In order to further safeguard the interest of the Group, those directors not
interested in the competing business review on a regular basis the businesses
and operations of the Group to ensure that its businesses are run on the basis
that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from, GD Cinema Circuit.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of retirement benefit plans in respect of the year are set out in note 40
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman)

Ms. Liu Rong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Bing Kwan?’

Mr. Lau Yip Leung*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang*

’ Non-executive directors

* Independent non-executive directors

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the existing
independent non-executive directors of the Company confirming his
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considers that such directors are independent to the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws (“Bye- Laws”), Ms.
Liu Rong and Mr. Ho Yeung Nang shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("“AGM"). All of the above retiring directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

*

For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors of the Company and senior management
of the Group as at the date of this report were as follows:

Biographical Details of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, aged 62, holding a degree of Doctor of Philosophy conferred
by Peking University, joined the Board in September 2000. Mr. Yu is the
chairman of the Board, the chairman of nomination committee of the
Company, and a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi is also an executive director and a member of nomination
committee of Sino-i, and a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company.

Ms. Liu Rong, aged 49, graduated from the Law School of Anhui University
with a Bachelor degree in Laws, and got a Master of Laws conferred by the Law
Institute of Chinese Academy of Social Science, and is also a qualified lawyer in
the PRC. In addition, Ms. Liu graduated from the International MBA School of
National School of Development of Peking University in 2013. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Liu worked in law firms.

Ms. Liu joined Sino-i group in April 2002 and has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company since March 2009, a member of nomination
committee since March 2017, the chief executive officer of the Company since
February 2018, and the general manager of the property development division
of the Group since February 2021.

Ms. Liu is also the chairlady of the board of directors, the chairlady of
nomination committee and a director of a number of subsidiaries of Sino-i, and
a director and/or general manager of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan, aged 71, graduated from the University of Oregon in the
United States of America with a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in
1974. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lam had accumulated extensive
experience in industries such as banking, property development and
investment business.

Mr. Lam joined the Board in September 2000, and was re-designated as a non-
executive director in April 2002. Mr. Lam is also a non-executive director of
Sino-i, and an independent non-executive director of Lai Sun Development
Company Limited, Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited and Lai Fung
Holdings Limited. The securities of the above mentioned companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yip Leung, aged 60, graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
and awarded an honours degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in 1991,
and also holds an MBA conferred by the University of Hull, UK. Mr. Lau is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau is a certified public accountant
in Hong Kong and started his public practice business in 1998. He is now the
person-in-charge of Messrs. Fung Lau & Company, Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Lau joined the Board in May 2006 and is also a member of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. In March 2012, Mr. Lau has
been appointed as a member of nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Lau was appointed as the chairman of audit committee of the Company in
September 2013.

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning, aged 73, graduated from Yunnan Finance and
Management College (E R &L E B # EEET) majoring in enterprise
management.

Mr. Xiao joined the Board in April 2016 and has been appointed as the
chairman of remuneration committee, and a member of audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Xiao is also an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of remuneration committee, and a member of
audit committee and nomination committee of Sino-i. Mr. Xiao is also a director
of LexinFintech Holdings Ltd. (listed on the NASDAQ stock exchange, stock
code: LX).

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang, aged 71, holds a Bachelor's Degree in Arts from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ho served in different
managerial positions in banking industry during the period from about 1973 to
1988. During the period from about 1989 to 1991, Mr. Ho was in Canada
running his own business. In about 1992, Mr. Ho joined the Group and worked
as a general manager of the property division of the Group, who left the Group
in July 2009 and engaged in the position of chief operating officer of a private
company engaged in coal mining and iron sand mining businesses in
Indonesia and the Philippines respectively.

Mr. Ho joined the Board in September 2016 and has been appointed as a
member of audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Ho is also an independent non-executive
director and a member of audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of Sino-i.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. Chen Ming Fei (aged 44)
General Manager
1 B) D EHE %5 B BR 2 7 (CE Dongli Technology Company Limited)

General Manager
b ST REAS 2 B H AT AR 2 B (Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information Company
Limited)

Mr. Chen, has engaged in sales for a number of years, and possesses acute
insight in IT business, and has extensive and professional experiences in
product creation, business strategy planning and business management. Prior
to joining Sino-i group, Mr. Chen worked in Vorwerk of Co. KG, a German
company.

In 2000, Mr. Chen joined CE Dongli, and was appointed as a national
commercial director, sales deputy general manager, executive deputy general
manager and business general manager. In January 2012, Mr. Chen was
promoted to a general manager. Mr. Chen is also the general manager of
Xinnet. Mr. Chen is also an executive director and a general manager of Sino-i,
and a director and/or general manager of a number of subsidiaries of Sino-i. In
January 2018, Mr. Chen was appointed as the chief executive officer of Sino-i.

Mr. Chenis also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Shang Feng (aged 40)

Mr. Shang Feng graduated from Xidian University with a Bachelor's degree in
Mechatronics and obtained a Master's degree in Software Engineering from
University of Electronic Science and Technology of China. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Shang has been involved in corporate management for more
than 10 years and has extensive management experience and expertise in
large chip manufacturing, telecommunications and automotive companies.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Shang was the general manager of strategic
operations of Zhihe Chuxing Science And Technology Co,, Ltd.

Mr. Shang joined the Company in September 2018 and has been the General
Manager of Group's cinemas since October 2019.

Mr. Shang is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

The Company

Long and short positions in shares in issue

EERRNRIEMEGZESR%

R2020F 128318 ARFEERFETHA
BRARRNEEMMBEEZE (TR RAES L
EiEpI(TFEH RS K] EXVER) 2’5 - 18
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EHIEEGFEZELMP KB RE ETRE
Mg 108 L BT ABE B HITESF I HNIRE
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Approximate

Capacity/ Number of percentage
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held holding Notes
EEnE B ERtE FERGEE Aotk ik
Yu Pun Hoi ("Mr. Yu") Corporate interest 40,673,177,261 (L) 59.25% 1
Tl ([ Fx4E]D) NGIE: £ 21,735,849,057 (S) 31.66% 2
Notes: Biat -
1. These 40,673,177,261 shares were collectively held by Rosewood Assets Ltd., Pippen Limited, 1. 2540673177261 RIRG D RIHTFAEBREZEHRE

Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited and Unicorn Assets Group Limited
companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Yu.

2. These 21,735,849,057 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, Rosewood Assets Ltd. and First
Best Assets Limited, such companies are indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi
Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu.

3. (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Associated Corporations

As disclosed above, Mr. Yu is entitled to control the exercise of more than one-
third of the voting power at general meetings of the Company. As such, Mr. Yu
is taken to be interested in the shares of the associated corporations of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Sino-i is a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and is an associated corporation of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. As at 31 December 2020,
the interests of the directors of the Company in shares and underlying shares
of Sino-i were as follows:

Sino-i

Long position in shares in issue
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Approximate
Number of percentage
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held holding Notes
BREQ
EEnE B RntE FrERGEE B B &
Mr. Yu Corporate interest 12,838,585,316 (L) 59.11% 1
T4 NI o
Notes: st -

1. These 12,838,585,316 shares were collectively held by Goalrise Investments Limited, View
Power Investments Limited and Wise Advance Investments Limited, all of which are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yu was taken to be interested in these shares by
virtue of his controlling interests in shares of the Company.

2. (L) denotes long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the directors nor
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

1. %% 12838585316 R DRI A DR Z 2B KB AR
Goalrise Investments Limited * View Power Investments
Limited & Wise Advance Investments Limited & 3% 5 o F
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 May 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, share options may be granted to directors, employees of
the Group and those who have contributed or will contribute to the Group at
any time within ten years after its adoption at the discretion of the Board.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and during the year ended 31 December
2020, no share options have been granted under the Scheme by the Company.
No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the Company
under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2020 and there were
no outstanding share options under the Scheme as at 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report.

A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
participants for their contribution or would-be contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interests (the
“Invested Entity”).

(2) Participants

The participants include:

a. any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive directors but not any non- executive director) of the
Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity;

b. any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

C. any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

d. any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

e. any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

f any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested

Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

g. any ex-employee who has contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group and any Invested Entity.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the relevant class of shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of the Scheme and the limit on the number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
schemes must not exceed 30% of the relevant class of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. No share options may be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company if this will
result in such limit exceeded. As at the date of this report, the number of
shares available for issue in respect thereof is 6,864,553,579 shares
representing approximately 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each participant under the Scheme and any
other schemes (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1 per cent. of the relevant class of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options above
this limit shall be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the
rules of the Scheme and to the relevant rules under the Listing Rules.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under a share option

The period within which the shares must be taken up a share option
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time of
grant, but such period must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant share option.

Minimum period for exercising a share option

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

The share option shall be deemed to have been accepted when the
duplicate letter duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance
of HKS$1.00 in favour of the Company by way of consideration for the
grant thereof, is received by the Company. To the extent that the offer is
not accepted within 28 days in the manner aforesaid, it will be deemed
to have been irrevocable declined and lapsed automatically.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(8) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme shall be a price
determined by the directors of the Company, but it must be at least the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the share.

(9) Remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on
29 May 2012 up to 28 May 2022.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than the statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph “Connected Transactions”, “Continuing
Connected Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions” below, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party, and in which
any directors of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, save and except so far as the provisions
of the Bye-Laws shall be avoided by any provisions of the statutes, the directors,
managing directors, alternate directors, auditors, secretary and other officers
for the time being of the Company and the trustees (if any) for the time being
acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company, and their respective
executors or administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their
executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they
shall incur or sustain through their own wilful neglect or default, fraud and
dishonesty respectively, and none of them shall be answerable for the acts,
receipts, neglects or defaults of any other of them, or for joining in any receipt
for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any
moneys or effects of the Company shall be lodged or deposited for safe
custody, or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of the Company shall be placed out or invested, or for any other loss,
misfortune or damage which may happen in the execution of their respective
offices or trusts, or in relation thereto, except as the same shall happen by or
through their own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty respectively.

The Bermuda Companies Act permits a company to exempt and indemnify its
directors and officers from liability in the following terms:

A company may in its bye-laws or in any contract or arrangement
between the company and any officer, or any person employed by the
company as auditor, exempt such officer or person from, or indemnify
him in respect of, any loss arising or liability attaching to him by virtue of
any rule of law in respect of any negligence, default, breach of any duty
or breach of trust of which the officer or person may be guilty in relation
to the company or any subsidiary thereof.

Any provision, whether contained in the bye-laws of a company or in
any contract or arrangement between the company and any officer, or
any person employed by the company as auditor, exempting such
officer or person from, or indemnifying him against any liability which by
virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to him in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty of which he may be guilty in relation to the company
shall be void.

This indemnification may also cover any liabilities which the officer incurs in
defending any proceedings (criminal or civil) where relief is granted to him,
where he is acquitted, or where judgement is given in his favour. A company
may advance money to an officer for the costs of defending proceedings, on
the condition that the advance shall be repaid if any allegation of fraud or
dishonesty is proven.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling
shareholder had a material interest subsisted during the year ended 31
December 2020.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has been entered
into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2020, and no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries has been entered into during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CHANGE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

There was no change in the Board since the date of the Company’s 2020
interim report and up to the date of this report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

There has been no change in the information of the directors since the date of
the Company’s 2020 interim report up to the date of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company remunerates its employees based on their qualifications,
experience and performance. In addition to basic salary payments, other
benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory provident fund, group
medical insurance, group personal accident insurance and examination leave
and etc. Employees are eligible to be granted share options under the
Company's share option scheme at the discretion of the Board. In general,
salary review is conducted annually.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2020, those persons (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Name of person holding an interest
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percentage of

the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 Number of issued share capital
of Part XV of the SFO Nature of interest shares held of the Company
FERBIESRAERAEXVIE2R3 5 HMAERABE BT
EEARRARERDES AL ER BH e FEROBE BREZBOBD L
Dadi Holdings Limited Corporate interest 40,673,177,261 (L) 59.25% 1
KR AR A NERER 21,735,849,057 (5) 31.66% 4
Rosewood Assets Ltd. Beneficial interest 8,041,150,210 (L) 11.71% 1
Enfkn 4,600,280,505 (S) 6.70%
Pippen Limited Beneficial interest 14,830,245,497 (L) 21.60% 1
Btk 13,225,806,452 (S) 19.27%
Staverley Assets Limited Beneficial interest 4,893,197,974 (L) 7.12% 1
|y i
First Best Assets Limited Beneficial interest 9,544,736, 998 L 13.90% 1
Eags 3,909,762,100 (5) 5.70%
Kung Ai Ming Corporate interest 6,530,443,498 (L) 9.51% 2
BT NEER 6,461,043,498 (S) 941%
Yu Ben Hei Corporate interest 6,461,043,498 (L) 941% 2
FARER NEER 6,461,043,498 (S) 941%
Macro Resources Ltd. Beneficial interest 4,361,043,498 (L) 6.35% 2
Eagn 4,361,043,498 (5) 6.35%
Lim Siew Choon Corporate interest 5,514,986,997 (L) 8.03% 3
NAER
Empire Gate Industrial Limited Beneficial interest 5,514,986,997 (L) 8.03% 3
BEiER
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Security interest 21,735,849,057 (L) 31.66% 5
BAER
China Construction Bank Corporation Security interest 21,735,849,057 (L) 31.66% 5
BARER
CITIC Capital Holdings Limited Corporate interest 2,056,850,000 (L) 3%
NAER
Security interest 6,461,043,498 (L) 941% 6
BARER
CITIC Capital Equity Investment (Tianjin) Beneficial interest 1,089,450,000(L) 1.58%
Corporation Limited EniEs
Security interest 6,461,043,498 (L) 941% 6
BER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS (Continued)

Notes:

1. Rosewood Assets Ltd., Pippen Limited, Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited and
Unicorn Assets Group Limited are companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi
Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu. Their interests in shares are disclosed
as the corporate interests of Mr. Yu above.

2. Macro Resources Ltd. and K Resources Group Limited are held as to 50% each by Ms. Kung Ai
Ming and Mr. Yu Ben Hei, the son of Mr. Yu. Their respective interest in 4,361,043,498 and
2,100,000,000 shares were included as interest held by Ms. Kung Ai Ming and Mr. Yu Ben Hei.
Ms. Kung Ai Ming owns interest of 69,400,000 shares through Redmap Resources Limited, her
wholly owned company.

3. Empire Gate Industrial Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Lim Siew Choon. Its interest in shares
was included as interest held by Mr. Lim Siew Choon.

4. These 21,735,849,057 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, Rosewood Assets Ltd. and First
Best Assets Limited, such companies are indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi
Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu.

5. These 21,735,849,057 shares were security interest indirectly held by Central Huijin Investment
Ltd. through China Construction Bank Corporation, CCB International Group Holdings Limited,
CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCB International
Overseas Limited.

6. These 6,461,043,498 shares were security interest indirectly held by CITIC Capital Holdings
Limited through CITIC Capital MB Investment Limited, Prestige Way Holdings Limited, Prestige
Way Limited, CITIC Capital Equity Investment (Tianjin) Corporation Limited and Infinite
Benefits Limited.

7. (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person (other than
directors and chief executive of the Company) had notified to the Company
any interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company
which was required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 46 to the
financial statements.

Save for the transactions mentioned in the below section headed “Connected
Transaction” and the section headed “"Continuing Connected Transactions”
which are subject to the disclosure and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to all connected transaction
requirements when any of the relevant the agreements is renewed or its terms
are varied pursuant to Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules, certain transactions
mentioned under the note also constituted connected transactions or
continuing connecting transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but are exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’” approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to
these connected transactions.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 11 May 2017, F/EE RIRAERMJL R)AR AR (Nan Hai Zhichen
Investment Consultancy (Beijing) Company Limited*, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) (“Nan Hai Zhichen”) as lender, China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited as lending agent and A L EHE AL ) B R AR
(Dadi Century Culture Media (Beijing) Company Limited*, “Dadi Century
Beijing”) as borrower, entered into entrusted loan contract, pursuant to which
Nan Hai Zhichen entrusted China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited to grant the
entrusted loan in the principal amount of RMB200,000,000 to Dadi Century
Beijing, with a term of three years. On 1 April 2020, Nan Hai Zhichen as lender
and Dadi Century Beijing as borrower entered into the loan extension
agreement to continue provision of the loan in the principal amount of
RMB200,000,000, for the period from 11 May 2020 to 10 November 2021. For
details, please refer to the announcement dated 1 April 2020 of the Company.

As at 1 April 2020, Ms. Liu, an executive Director of the Company, owns 80% of
Dadi Century Beijing. In addition, Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an associate of Mr. Yu Pun
Hoi (an executive Director of the Company), owns 20% of Dadi Century Beijing.
Given the foregoing, Dadi Century Beijing is a connected person of the
Company and the transactions contemplated under the loan extension
agreement constitute connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

On 30 November 2020, Dadi Cinema (HK) Limited (“Dadi Cinema (HK)"), A2 B
REZ XLEEALF)ER AR (Dadi Century Film Culture Media (Beijing)
Company Limited®) (‘Dadi Century’), B EZILERINEEREHPEER
&%) (Ningbo Yishan Cinema Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)*)
("Ningbo Yishan") and B SR A 52Ft i2 3 B BR 2 &) (Guangdong Dadi Cinema
Construction Limited®) ("Guangdong Dadi”) entered into the capital injection
agreement in relation to the capital injection of RMB600,000,000 as the
additional registered capital of Guangdong Dadi made by Dadi Century. The
registered capital of Guangdong Dadi will be increased from RMB2,346,427,999
to RMB2,946,427,999, among which Dadi Century will inject RMB600,000,000
into Guangdong Dadi by converting its shareholder’s loans into equity. Upon
completion of the capital injection, the equity interest of the Group Companies
and Ningbo Yishan in Guangdong Dadi will be 96.15% and 3.85% respectively.
No further capital injection will be made by Dadi Cinema (HK) and Ningbo
Yishan under the capital injection agreement.

*  For identification purpose only
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Continued)

As at 30 November 2020, 20% interest in Ningbo Yishan is held by Ms. Liu, an
executive Director of the Company, and 80% interest in Ningbo Yishan is held
by It R RMETHIKE G R EEBRER) (Beijing Dadi Dreamworks
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)*), an associate of Ms. Liu. As such,
Ningbo Yishan is an associate of Ms. Liu and thus a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Capital
Injection Agreement, the equity interest of Ningbo Yishan in Guangdong Dadi
would be diluted and decreased from 4.84% to 3.85% upon the completion of
the capital injection. As such, the effective equity interest of the Group in
Guangdong Dadi will be increased from 95.16% to 96.15%, which shall be
deemed as an acquisition of 0.99% equity interest in Guangdong Dadi from
Ningbo Yishan by the Group for a deemed consideration of RMB29,040,000,
representing 4.84% (being the equity interest of Ningbo Yishan in Guangdong
Dadi prior to the capital injection) of RMB600,000,000, and constituting a
connected transaction of the Company. For details please refer to the
announcement dated 30 November 2020 of the Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year under review, the Company and certain subsidiaries
entered into certain continuing connected transactions. As per the Listing
Rules, all such continuing connected transactions are required to be disclosed
in the annual report of the Company:

1. On 30 November 2017, the Company entered into the business
cooperation framework agreement with GD Cinema Circuit for a fixed
term from 1 December 2017 to 30 November 2020, pursuant to which
GD Cinema Circuit shall supply the Group with motion pictures and
license the Group to project such motion pictures in its cinemas. Upon
commencement of the term, the Dadi Cinema Cooperation Agreement
(ie. the cooperation agreement entered into between Guangdong Dadi
and GD Cinema Circuit on 1 January 2015) and the Dadi Development
Cooperation Agreement (ie. the cooperation agreement entered into
between Dadi Development and GD Cinema Circuit on 1 January 2015)
shall be terminated and cease to take effect. As at the date of the
business cooperation framework agreement, Ms. Liu Rong, owns 80% of
Dadi Century Beijing, which directly owns 82.49% equity interest of GD
Cinema Circuit. Ms. Liu Rong also has an effective control of 12.95%
equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit through Dadi Legend, which is an
associate of Ms. Liu Rong. In addition, Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an associate of
Mr. Yu (an executive director of the Company), owns 20% of Dadi
Century Beijing. Given the foregoing, GD Cinema Circuit is a connected
person of the Company. Particulars of which have been disclosed in the
announcement dated 30 November 2017 issued by the Company, all
capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall have the same meanings used
in such announcement unless otherwise the contexts hereinbelow
specify.

* For identification purpose only
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

1.

(Continued)

The fee payable for the motion pictures procured through the GD
Cinema Circuit will either be paid as a Fixed Fee Motion Picture or a Box
Sharing Motion Picture, both of which are explained below.

(a) Fixed Fee Motion Pictures

The Group shall pay monthly, a fixed licensing fee to the GD
Cinema Circuit for licensing each Fixed Fee Motion Picture from
the GD Cinema Circuit during the motion picture projection
period and such fixed licensing fee shall be in accordance with the
same terms offered by GD Cinema Circuit to its other cinema
operators. GD Cinema Circuit shall not be entitled to sharing of the
Net Box Office of the Fixed Fee Motion Pictures.

(b) Box Sharing Motion Pictures

The Net Box Office of each Box Sharing Motion Picture shall be
distributed in the following manner:

(i) a sum equivalent to all fees payable to the distributor (from
whom GD Cinema Circuit obtained its right to permit the
Group to project such motion pictures in its cinemas) (the
"Distributor Fees”) shall be paid to the GD Cinema Circuit;

(i) the Group shall, during the term, pay an amount of not
more than 1% of the Net Box Office of the Box Sharing
Motion Picture to the GD Cinema Circuit and the exact
percentage of such payment shall be agreed upon between
the Group and the GD Cinema Circuit prior to the screening
of the motion picture; and

(i) the remaining portion of the Net Box Office shall belong to
the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

1. (Continued)
Pursuant to the business cooperation framework agreement, the
maximum amount of payment to be made by the Group to the GD

HHEMERX S (W)

. (&)
RIBEXBEIEELDZ  ANEERERE
TR BRARMPTGR S 2 e R IER T

Cinema Circuit in relation to the provision of motion pictures, less the ABBREHWMOT :
Distributor Fees are set out below:
For the eleven For the For the For the
months ended year ended yearended month ended
30 November 31 December 31December 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017
BE2020F #HZE2019F #EZE2018F #HE2017F
11 A30H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
111 {EA LLFE LEE A%
(HKS'000) (HKS'000) (HKS'000) (HKS'000)
(F7#&7T) (F&mT) (F&7T) (FA&mT)
Maximum amount REEGRERET R A 92,000 80,000 50,000 4,000

payable by the Group Kb 4R FES 2
to the GD Cinema =R BT A
Circuit in relation to 433!

provision of motion
pictures, less the
Distributor Fees

On 30 November 2020, the Company entered into the business cooperation
framework agreement with GD Cinema Circuit for a fixed term from 1
December 2020 to 30 November 2023, pursuant to which GD Cinema Circuit
shall supply the Group with motion pictures and license the Group to project
such motion pictures in its cinemas.

On 30 November 2020, Ms. Liu, an executive Director of the Company, owns
80% of Dadi Century Beijing, which directly owns 82.49% equity interest of GD
Cinema Circuit. Ms. Liu also has an effective control of 12.95% equity interest of
GD Cinema Circuit through Dadi Legend, which is an associate of Ms. Liu. In
addition, Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an associate of Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (an executive
Director of the Company), owns 20% of Dadi Century Beijing. Given the
foregoing, GD Cinema Circuit is a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the business cooperation framework agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details
please refer to the announcement dated 30 November 2020 of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The fee payable for the motion pictures procured through GD Cinema Circuit
will either be paid as a Fixed Fee Motion Picture or a Box Sharing Motion
Picture, both of which are explained below.

(a) Fixed Fee Motion Pictures

The Group shall pay monthly, a fixed licensing fee to GD Cinema Circuit for
licensing each Fixed Fee Motion Picture from GD Cinema Circuit during the
motion picture projection period and such fixed licensing fee shall be
determined in accordance with the same terms offered by GD Cinema
Circuit to its other cinema operators. GD Cinema Circuit shall not be entitled
to sharing of the Net Box Office of the Fixed Fee Motion Pictures.

(b) Box Sharing Motion Pictures

The Net Box Office of each Box Sharing Motion Picture shall be
distributed in the following manner:

U]

(iif)

a sum equivalent to all fees payable to the distributor (from whom
GD Cinema Circuit obtained its right to permit the Group to
project such motion pictures in its cinemas) (the “Distributor Fees")
shall be paid to GD Cinema Circuit;

the Group shall pay an amount of not more than 0.8% of the Net
Box Office of a Box Sharing Motion Picture to GD Cinema Circuit in
December 2020 and shall pay an amount of not more than 0.5%
of the Net Box Office of a Box Sharing Motion Picture to GD
Cinema Circuit between 1 January 2021 and 30 November 2023,
and the exact percentage of such payment shall be agreed upon
between the Group and GD Cinema Circuit prior to the projection
of the motion picture; and

the remaining portion of the Net Box Office shall belong to the
Group.

Pursuant to the Business Cooperation Framework Agreement, the maximum
amount of payment to be made by the Group to GD Cinema Circuit in relation
to the provision of motion pictures (including both Fixed Fee Motion Pictures
and Box Sharing Motion Pictures), less the Distributor Fees are set out below:
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For the one For the For the For the eleven

month ended year ended year ended months ended

31 December 31 December 31December 30 November

2020 2021 2022 2023

BE2020F #HZE2021F #HZF2022F HZE2023F

12H31H 12H31H 12H831H 11 A30H

I+—1EA LHFEE IEFEE t+—1fEA

(HKS'000) (HKS'000) (HKS'000) (HKS'000)

(F%&m) (F%&m) (F#&m) (F#m)

Maximum amount payable AEEREREEZR R 4,000 30,000 35,000 37,000

by the Group to GD
Cinema Circuit in relation to

R ARIENS Z &=k
BERETAE

provision of motion pictures,
less the Distributor Fees
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

All the independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions, and confirmed that all such
continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3)  according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged
its auditors to report on all continuing connected transactions as mentioned
above, and the auditors have issued to the Board a letter confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that all such
continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(3)  exceed the proposed annual caps as determined by the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the law in
Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Amber Treasure Ventures Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company)
successfully completed the issuance of two tranches of credit enhanced notes
due in 2022, with the amount and interest rate of US$500,000,000 (3.50% per
annum) and US$350,000,000 (2.90% per annum) on 8 May 2020 and 11 June
2020. The notes are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

As stated in the announcements of the Company dated 25 May 2017 and 21
July 2017, Amber Treasure Ventures Limited issued two tranches of credit
enhanced notes due in 2020, with the amount and interest rate of
US$500,000,000 (3.00% per annum) and US$400,000,000 (3.15% per annum)
("2017 Notes"), respectively. The notes were listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Amber Treasure Ventures Limited has fully repaid the outstanding
principal of the 2017 Notes together with the accrued interest upon its
maturity on 25 May 2020 and 21 July 2020 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the
directors, the Company has maintained during the year and up to the date of
this report sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 61 to 78.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Lau Yip Leung, Mr. Xiao Sui Ning and Mr. Ho
Yeung Nang. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditor of the
Company and management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020, and discussed the auditing, financial
control, internal control and risk management systems.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were audited
by BDO Limited (“BDO"). A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS

Reference is made to the joint announcements of the Company and its listed
subsidiary, Sino-i, dated 15 November 2013, 6 December 2013 and 31 July 2015
(collectively, the "Announcements”) in relation to a discloseable transaction
under which Xinnet Technology Information Company Limited (“XWHT"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino-i, by means of the Structured
Agreements, shall be entitled to control over Xinnet's management, businesses
and operations in substance in addition to recognise and receive all economic
benefits of the business of Xinnet. All capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the Announcements unless
otherwise stated in this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The Board hereby provides updated information in relation to the business
operations of Xinnet through the Structured Agreements and the implications
thereof as follows:

(a) Particulars and business activities of Xinnet:

Xinnet is a limited liability company established in the PRC and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ZQHT. Mr. Jiang is a PRC citizen, and an ultimate
beneficial owner of 100% equity interest of ZQHT. Xinnet's main
businesses are provision of virtual server hosting and maintenance
services, provision of email services and registration of domain names in
the PRC, which are all regarded as a kind of internet content services.
Xinnet has obtained a valid licence for providing internet content
services, issued by IEL R EEEIED (Beijing Communications
Administration).

(b) Summary of main terms of the Structured Agreement:
(1) Loan Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):
(

) Parties: XWHT as lender; and Mr. Jiang as borrower

(i) Loan amount: RMB1,500,000
(i) The loan is interest free, and has no maturity date for

repayment. Mr. Jiang shall have no right to effect any early
repayment unless having the written consent from XWHT.

(2)  Equity Pledge Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

D) Parties: XWHT as pledgee; ZQHT as pledgor; and Xinnet

(i) Assets pledged: 80% equity interest of Xinnet, free from
encumbrance, as first fixed charge to XWHT as security.

(i) ZQHT shall not dispose of the pledged 80% equity interest
to any other party without obtaining the written approval of
XWHT.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Summary of main terms of the Structured Agreement:

(Continued)

(3)  Management and Technology Services Agreement (dated 15

November 2013):
(i) Parties: XWHT; and Xinnet

(i) XWHT shall provide certain exclusive management and

technology services to Xinnet.

(i) The Management and Technology Services Agreement is
solely terminable by XWHT but not Xinnet. In return for the
provision of the exclusive services, XWHT shall be entitled to
receive a service fee which is equivalent to the net profit of
Xinnet as per its yearly audited financial statements.

(4)  Option Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

i

(i) ZQHT shall grant an exclusive option to XWHT at an option
price of RMB1.00 to acquire up to 100% equity interest in
the registered capital of Xinnet (no limit on the number of
times the option may be exercised by XWHT). The total
subscription price for 100% equity interest of Xinnet shall be
equivalent to the total loan amount (being RMB1,500,000)
under the Loan Agreement, and the subscription price for
each option exercised shall be paid by direct set off on a
dollar-for-dollar basis against the outstanding loan amount

under the Loan Agreement.

(5)  Power of Attorney (dated 15 November 2013):

(i) Parties: ZQHT; and XWHT

(i) Itis an irrevocable power of attorney under which XWHT
shall be the sole attorney of ZQHT. XWHT shall have full
power, without having to obtain ZQHT's any further consent
or approval, to exercise such rights in Xinnet as (a) all
shareholder’s rights and voting rights in accordance with
the corporate memorandum of Xinnet; and (b) rights of
nomination and appointment of legal representative,
chairman of the board, directors, general manager and
other senior management personnel of Xinnet.

The Loan Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement, the
Management and Technology Services Agreement, the Option
Agreement and the Power of Attorney shall be executed

simultaneously with each other.

) Parties: XWHT as grantee; ZQHT as grantor; and Xinnet
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The significance of business activities of Xinnet to the
Group:

By means of the Structured Agreements, the Group may engage in the
business of virtual server hosting and maintenance in the PRC and such
business may widen the spectrum of services of the Group. The widened
services are expected to lead the Group to having not only a stronger
foothold against its competitors in the PRC but also an achievement of
efficiency and cost-effectiveness in provision of virtual server hosting and
maintenance services to the customers of the Group.

The financial impact of the Structured Agreements on
the Group:

XWHT is a parent company of Xinnet as XWHT has the right to control
Xinnet by virtual of the Structured Agreements. As a result, the financial
position and operating results of Xinnet and its subsidiary shall be
consolidated in the XWHT's financial statements from the date on which
XWHT has gained control in Xinnet in accordance with the HKFRS.

During the year, Xinnet's revenue was approximately HK$143,770,000
(2019: approximately HK$113,604,000); profit before income tax was
approximately HK$16,472,000 (2019: loss before income tax
approximately HK$31,924,000); and total assets were approximately
HK$189,025,000 (2019: approximately HK$186,209,000) have been
consolidated into the Group's financial statement.

The profit for the year was mainly due to the increase in gross profit from
domain names.

The extent to which the Structured Agreements
relate to requirement of applicable laws, rules and
regulations other than the foreign ownership
restriction:

In view of the PRC legal opinion, (i) the Structured Agreements have
complied with the laws, rules and regulations in the PRC, and complied
with the respective articles of association of XWHT, ZQHT and Xinnet; (ii)
there is no law, rule or regulation specifically disallows foreign investors
from using any structured agreement to gain control of or operate the
business of Xinnet; and (iii) the Structured Agreements would not be
deemed as concealing illegal intentions with a lawful form and void
under the PRC contract law.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and the
risks associated therewith including actions taken to
mitigate such risks:

Xinnet's main businesses are classified as value-added telecommunication
services which is a kind of business restricted to foreign investors in the
PRC. By virtue of MNEIREBEREBIBIHRE (Provisions on the
Administration of Foreign Investment Telecommunication Enterprises),
foreign investors are not allowed to hold more than 50% in the equity
interest of a PRC enterprise providing value-added telecommunication
services.

The main businesses of Xinnet are considered as value-added businesses
which widen the spectrum of services of the Group for its customers and
in turn enhance the Group's competitiveness in the PRC market. As the
Group faces the aforesaid restriction in equity interest of a PRC company,
the Structured Agreements shall be regarded as a strategic arrangement
by which the Group may fully and effectively control Xinnet, which in
turn enables the Group to achieve the aforesaid purposes. In addition,
the Structured Agreements offer flexibility to the Group in control of
Xinnet — (a) control of its management, businesses and operations; and
(b) owning of its 100% equity interest by exercising the call option under
the Option Agreement when the restriction in having more than 50%
equity interest of a PRC enterprise by foreign investors is removed or
repealed.

In addition to the foreign ownership restriction under the prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, the Structured Agreements do not
violate any PRC laws, rules and regulations, and the execution of the
Structured Agreements by the parties thereto does not violate any article
in the articles of association of the contracting parties; and such
prevailing provision and notice issued by the PRC authorities as (i) <&
EIREEELEEIEMRT) (Provisions on the Administration of
Foreign Investment Telecommunication Enterprises) (@amended in 2008)
and (HMEIREEFIEE B ) (Catalogue for Guidance of Foreign
Investment Industries) (@amended in 2015) issued by the State Council of
the PRC, under which foreign investor shall not have more than 50% in a
corporation providing value-added telecommunication services; and (ii)

CEARMBRINERELLIBEBEEFEIENRBA) (Notice of
Strengthened Administration of Foreign Investment in and Operation of
Value-Added Telecommunication Business) issued by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the PRC in July 2006 under
which a local PRC company holding an internet content provider licence
shall not lease, transfer or sell the licence to foreign investors in any form,
or provide any assistance to foreign investors to provide internet content
services in the PRC, but such provision and notice are not governing or
restricting the control of a PRC company through structured
agreements.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and the
risks associated therewith including actions taken to
mitigate such risks: (Continued)

Given the foregoing, the Structured Agreements shall be regarded as
valid documents binding all parties thereto as at the date of this report.
However, if any new applicable law or regulation were enacted in the
future in the PRC, the validity and enforceability of the Structured
Agreements might have been affected, and as a result, the structured
agreements of controlling Xinnet would have been disruptive which in
turn would have affected the business of the Group.

The Ministry of Commerce of the PRC has issued certain consultation
paper (BZRECKE R FR) in respect of a bill namely (/1 # A R HF1E
HNEIFEE %) (Foreign Investment Law of the PRC) (the “Bill") in January
2015, which is to be enacted into an act or statute. As per sections 15
and 18 thereof, foreign investment means foreign investors directly or
indirectly conduct certain investment activities, e.g. through structured
agreements or trust arrangement to control a PRC company or holding
equity interest of a PRC company. Any foreign investment in any
business under the catalogue of restricted investment shall apply for an
access permit from foreign investment authority under the State Council
of the PRC as per section 27 thereof. There is no indication in the Bill that
contracts under the contractual arrangement would be void.

Application for an access permit cited in the Bill could be viewed as a
kind of administrative procedure rather than a prohibitive threshold,
therefore, failure in obtaining the permit by fulfilling certain
administrative procedures would not be very high. As Mr. Jiang is not a
connected person of the Group, the risk of direct conflict of interest with
the Group will be very low. It is unlikely for Mr. Jiang setting up another
entity conducting business having a direct competition with Xinnet's,
otherwise, Mr. Jiang would not execute and procure the execution of the
Structured Agreements by which Mr. Jiang has given up the businesses
of Xinnet. As at the date of this report, the Group is not aware that Mr.
Jiang has carried out or is involved in any business having a direct
competition with the businesses of the Group. If Mr. Jiang or ZQHT
breaches any obligations or undertakings under any Structured
Agreements, the operations of Xinnet would not be affected as the
position of the Group in controlling Xinnet has been fully secured by (a)
full control of the board of directors of Xinnet; and (b) obtaining a charge
of 100% equity interest in Xinnet (as per the provision of the Loan
Agreement, the pledgor has further charged the remaining 20% equity
interest in Xinnet as first fixed charge in favour of the pledgee in October
2014).
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and the
risks associated therewith including actions taken to
mitigate such risks: (Continued)

Since the Bill has yet been enacted into an act or statute, the sections or
provisions thereof might be further modified and amended after the
consultation period, it is uncertain whether there will be any additional
conditions imposed on foreign investors.

(R EE AR HEMEIINE % E L) (Foreign Investment Law of the PRC)
was promulgated on 15 March 2019 and was implemented on 1 January
2020. The Foreign Investment Law does not clearly stipulate the legality
or effectiveness of foreign-invested enterprises in adopting structured
agreements to control domestic companies in the PRC, nor does it
require explicit requirements on the specific form of the structured
agreements or the specific content of the structured agreements legal
documentation. Thus, after the Foreign Investment Law come into force,
its provisions shall not affect the effectiveness of the structured
agreements legal documentation. However, there are still uncertainties
in the interpretation and application of the PRC laws and regulations on
the effectiveness of the structured agreements, and the interpretation of
the relevant authorities may be different from the above. Therefore, we
cannot assure that the above structured agreement will not be adversely
affected.

The Structured Agreements might be subject to scrutiny of the tax
authorities in the PRC, and additional tax might be imposed, but the
Group does not expect that such tax risk is high and will lead to any
substantial financial impact on the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Material change in the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been supplemented or modified since the
date of execution of all such Structured Agreements.

Unwinding of the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been unwound since the date of
execution all such Structured Agreements. None of the Structured
Agreement is to be unwound until and unless the restriction on
ownership by foreign investors is removed or not in force. In the event of
such restriction in foreign investment is removed or not in force, XHWT
will exercise its option under the Option Agreement to acquire the entire
equity interest in Xinnet. Upon completion of formal acquisition of the
entire equity interest in Xinnet, the Structured Agreements will then be
unwound.

On behalf of the Board
Yu Pun Hoi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company is committed to maintain high corporate governance standard
and unambiguous procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in order to enhance its shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") and Corporate Governance Report as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2020 and as of the date of this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the current Board is made up of six directors
including two executive directors, one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors (the “INEDs"). The directors are,
collectively and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders.
The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 35 to 37 under the
heading “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”. During
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Board
consisted of the following:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Rong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yip Leung
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang
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Corporate Governance Report
EXREBRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The overall management of the Company’s businesses is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and monitoring its affairs. All directors should take decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned
senior management of the Company.

The Board has the full support of its board committees and the senior
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Board members do not have any
financial, business and family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other. During the year, the Board held 14 meetings.

During the year, the chairman held a meeting with each of the non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company and
obtained independent opinions relating to affairs of the Board and the
Company without the presence of other executive directors.

Non-executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulated that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.

The Company has entered into service contracts with its non-executive
directors (including INEDs) for a term of two years with effect from the signing
date of service contracts.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, during the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company has appointed three INEDs of whom Mr. Lau
Yip Leung is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the INEDs are independent.

Notwithstanding that Mr. Lau Yip Leung has served as an INED for more than
nine years, (i) the Board has assessed and reviewed the annual confirmation of
independence based on the requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and affirmed that Mr. Lau Yip Leung remains independent; (ii) the
Nomination Committee of the Company has assessed and is satisfied of the
independence of Mr. Lau Yip Leung; and (iii) the Board considers that Mr. Lau
Yip Leung remains independent of management and free of any relationship
which could materially interfere with the exercise of his independent
judgement. Notwithstanding the length of his service, the Company believes
that his valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will
continue to benefit the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in a
programme of continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company should be responsible for
arranging and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the directors.

From time to time, directors are provided with written materials to develop
and refresh their professional skills on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the purpose of assisting them in discharging
their duties. The Company had received from each of the directors the
confirmations on taking continuous professional training during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has three board committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board's
responsibilities.

Executive Committee

In order to enhance the efficiency of the Company’s decision making, the
executive committee of the Company was abolished with effect from 28 April
2020.

Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit Committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee consisted of all INEDs as follows:

Mr. Lau Yip Leung (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reports and internal control procedures as well as to
maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings, in particular, to review
with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020, and
discussed the auditing, financial control, internal control and risk management
systems.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXREBRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee consisted of all the INEDs as follows:

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Lau Yip Leung
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model described in
paragraph B.1.2(c) under the CG Code (i.e. making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive director and
senior management member). The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
establishing of formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policies and the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration on salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting, in particular, to
review and recommend to the Board the remuneration policies and the
remuneration packages of the individual executive directors and senior
management of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the emoluments paid or payable to
members of senior management were within the following band:

Emolument band
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee consisted of the directors of the Company as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Ms. Liu Rong

Mr. Lau Yip Leung*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang*

* INEDs

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating nomination
policies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become directors, assessing
the independence of INEDs, and making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of directors, and review the board diversity policy annually. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the Board to seek external
professional advice in the selection and recommendation for directorship,
when required, fulfilling the requirements for professional knowledge and
industry experience of any proposed candidates.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting, in particular, to
review and assessment of the independence of all INEDs of the Company; to
consider and recommend to the Board for approval the list of retiring directors
for re-election at the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2020 (the “2020
AGM"); to review the structure, size and composition of the Board.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted the nomination policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the key nomination criteria and nomination procedures for the
nomination of directors of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXREBRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)
Key Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall identify and nominate qualified individuals
for appointment as additional directors or to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arise. The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

Reputation for integrity

Accomplishment and experience in any particular industry
Professional and education background

Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer.

Nomination Procedures

1. Appointment of Directors
The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s) suitably qualified to
become Board members, having due regard to the Policy and the
diversity policy of the Board (“Board Diversity Policy”), and assesses the
independence of the proposed INED(s) as appropriate.

(1) The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to the
Board.

(2)  The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by the
Nomination Committee, having due regard to the Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy.

(3)  The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s) as
director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for election at
a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject to re-
election by shareholders of the Company at the next annual
general meeting after initial appointment in accordance with the
Company's Bye-Laws.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)
Nomination Procedures (Continued)

2. Re-appointment of Directors

(1) The Nomination Committee considers each retiring Director,
having due regard to the Policy and the Board Diversity Policy and
assesses the independence of each retiring INED.

(2)  The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to the
Board.

(3)  The Board considers each retiring director recommended by the
Nomination Committee having due regard to the Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy.

(4)  The Board recommends the retiring directors to stand for re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company's Bye-Laws.

The Nomination Committee will undertake the review and revision of
the Policy, as and when needed.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy in relation to the nomination
and appointment of new directors, which sets out the selection of board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives with reference
to the Company’s business model and specific needs, including but not limited
to gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational background,
industry experience and professional experience. Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee will give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, and will review the Board Diversity Policy, so as to
develop and review measurable objectives for the implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and to monitor the progress on achieving these objectives.

The directors’ biographical information as at the date of this report is set out on
pages 35 to 37 under the heading “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management”. The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board Diversity Policy
and achievement of objectives and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy, and
recommended the Board that the existing Board was appropriately structured and
no change was required.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board of the Company takes into account, inter alia, the Group’s
earnings performance, financial position, general business conditions and
strategies, interests of the shareholders of the Company, the Group's expected
working capital requirements and future expansion plans, business cycle of the
Group's business and other external or internal factors that may have an impact
on the business, investment requirements and future prospects.

The proposed declaration of dividend is subject to the Board's decision and the
declaration of any final dividend for any year is subject to shareholders’
approval. The declaration of dividend is also subject to Bermuda law and the
Company's Bye-laws.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

a. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

b.  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

C. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

e. To review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE

The attendance record of each director at the Board, Board committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in the table below:
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ERERXNREFEHFLCS

TRIWREEFHFEHE2020F 128318 IEF
ERITHNARGBEZCSH EETZE82CH
EERASHIER

Attendance/Number of Meetings

g/ SRR

Audit Remuneration Nomination Continuous

Board General Committee Committee = Committee Professional
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Development
B ) RBE &
Name of Director EEpE EEZgeR BRAE ZEEEE ZEEEE ZEEE3 BEURRE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi TmgLsE 10 1 NATER NATER 1 v
Ms. Liu Rong EIE Y 13 - NATEAR  NATER 1 v
Non-executive Director EBTES
Mr. Lam Bing Kwan MRELE 8 1 NATRER  NATER NATER v
Independent Non-executive BYEHITES
Directors
Mr. Lau Yip Leung AEREE 4 1 1 1 v
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning HEELE 4 - 1 1 v
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang & EE 4 1 2 1 1 v
Number of meetings held FNERGRRE 14 1 2 1 1

during the year

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 113 to 120.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Group in respect of audit
service and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately HK$12,596,000 and HK$773,000, respectively. The
non-audit services include professional advice on transactions as well broader
business advisory and advisory service to assist the Company to comply with
laws and regulations. An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external
auditors of the Group is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Jay Shree Aggarwal, who was an employee of the Company and became
the company secretary with effect from 1 July 2018, has complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an Special
General Meeting (“SGM")

Pursuant to the Bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws, the board may, whenever it
thinks fit, convene an SGM, and SGM shall also be convened on
requisition, as provided by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”), or, in default, may be convened by the requisitionists.

Under Section 74 of the Companies Act, the directors of the Company,
notwithstanding anything in its Bye-Laws shall, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene
an SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company and may consist of several documents in like form each signed
by one or more requisitionists.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

A meeting convened under Section 74 of the Companies Act by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by directors.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Subject to Section 79 of the Companies Act, it shall be the duty of the
Company on the requisition in writing of such number of shareholders
as is hereinafter specified, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

—  to give to the shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting;

—  to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting (Continued)

The number of shareholders necessary for a requisition under Section 79
of the Companies Act shall be:

(@)  either any number of shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requisition relates; or

(b)  notless than one hundred shareholders.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to shareholders of the Company entitled
to have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such shareholder in any manner
permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such
resolution shall be given to any other shareholders of the Company by
giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meetings of the Company, provided
that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the resolution
shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner and, so far as
practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting and, where it is
not practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it shall be served
or given as soon as practicable thereafter.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong. Shareholders
may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
12/F., The Octagon, No.6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong, or to the Company by email at info@nanhaicorp.com.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the SGM/annual
general meeting.

The details of the rights of shareholders of the Company can be found in the
Company's website at www.nanhaicorp.com.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to safeguard shareholders’ interests and believes
that effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
business performance and strategies of the Group.

The Board adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy which aims to set
out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders of the
Company and potential investors are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the Company, in
order to enable shareholders of the Company to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow shareholders of the Company and potential
investors to engage actively with the Company.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to all interested parties on a timely basis. All such publications together with
additional information of the Group are timely updated on the Company's
website at www.nanhaicorp.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company's constitutional documents during the
year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in monitoring the risk exposures and the operating effectiveness of the
underlying risk management and internal control systems.

The Company assists the management in identifying, assessing, responding,
monitoring and reporting corresponding risks through risk management and
internal control structure. The system aims at managing instead of eliminating
the risks of unfulfilled business goals that reasonably but not absolutely
prevents the impact of material risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Company has established a sound risk management and internal control
structure, adopting a top-down organizational structure from the Board to the
specific internal control units with well-defined duties. The Group’s Internal
Audit and Monitoring Department assists the Board and/or the Audit
Committee in the ongoing review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. The Board, through Audit
Committee, is at least annually informed of significant risks that may impact on
the Group's performance.
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RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued) RS ERRE(8)

The Board
EEg

Audit Committee

EREEE

The Management
(including heads of
business units,
departments
and divisions)

EEE (BRFEBEMN -

BRI BEE)

Internal Audit
and Monitoring

Department
AR ET EE L ED

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems in order to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group;
formulate a management structure with specific terms of reference; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives, and formulate the Group's risk management strategies.
BRAERSELEINEREERNBEERS  MRERFREREAEEBEE ;
HIEARAREERIERNEIREE &
BEANRMERSBEAEMEAEZERARZMERIZEE  THEAEEZ AR
EIRREE o

oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

review and discuss with the management annually to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to maintain effective risk management and internal control systems; and
consider major findings on internal control matters and make recommendations to the
Board.
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design, implement and monitor the risk management and internal control systems properly
and ensure the systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate significant risks in day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and rectification of the findings on, internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.
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assist the Board and the Audit Committee to carry out analysis and independent
assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems;

be responsible for coordinating the risk management work and reviewing the Group's
major risk management areas and report to the Audit Committee in this regard; and

make suggestions for the improving the design and implementation deficiencies of risk
management and internal control system to promote standardization of work.
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CONTROL APPROACH AND TOOLS

During the year, the management analyzed the control environment and the
risks identified, and implemented various controls measures.

approach taken: the management conducts interviews with relevant
staff members, reviews relevant documentation of the internal control
system and evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the design of the
Group’s internal control system, provides recommendations for
improvement and assesses the effectiveness of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and internal control are reported to and reviewed by the
Audit Committee annually.

management information systems and technologies: such systems
and technologies are employed to keep track of the inputs and outputs
of the Group's operations, such as financial data system and human
resources. They are also employed to track the audit process in the
authorization system, in which permissions and responsibility of
authorisation are clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the system.

reports and variance analysis: such reports and analysis of each
segment are conducted on a regular basis such that the performance of
each segment can be easily accessible.

audit and supervision: during the year, the Group conducts overall
deployment and management of risk management and internal control
according to the “Nan Hai Corporation Limited Internal Audit System (7
YRR A R A B A EFE 5T H E)". According to the internal audit
system, the Audit and Monitoring Department conducts auditing and
verification of the Group’s main business, finance, engineering,
information technology and other fields. In the meantime, thorough
inspection for defects in the internal system of the subsidiaries of the
Group is conducted to ensure the compliance, rationality and risk
controllability in the major business processes of the Company. By
analyzing various internal control points relating to the business
processes, we have a better picture of the current conditions of internal
control, unearthed and rectify defects and weaknesses of the internal
control system, made recommendations for rectification and oversaw
the result of relevant rectification in order to prevent the potential risks
of operation management, and improve corporate governance and
cost-effectiveness.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

As an important element of quality corporate governance, the overall risk
management process is overseen by the Board through the Audit Committee.
Rather than a separate and standalone process, risk management is integrated
into the business and decision-making processes, including strategy
formulation, business planning, capital allocation, investment decisions,
internal control and day-to-day operations.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze, evaluate,
respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function
or process within its terms of reference. It endeavours to evaluate the level of
risk and compare it against the predetermined levels of risk acceptable to the
Company. For risk control and monitoring, it involves making decisions
regarding acceptable risks and the ways to address unacceptable risks. The
management will develop contingency plans for possible loss scenarios.
Incidents and other situations incurring actual or potential loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of the effort to manage risks.

RISK EXPOSURES

The following illustrates the major risks of the Group.

Risk of China’s policies on real estate — the property development business of
the Company is operated in China. The outbreak of the Epidemic in 2020 has
had a certain impact on the operation of the property market in China, but the
PRC government has maintained its determination in regulating the property
market and insisted on the positioning of “no speculation of residential
properties”. To promote the stable operation of the real estate market, the
central government and a number of local cities have introduced a number of
fiscal policies and sound monetary policies to support the real estate industry,
including lowering the loan prime rate, increasing bank credit support and
encouraging bond and equity financing. In response to the impact of the
Epidemic, the national macro policy has become more counter-cyclical and
the local authorities have become more flexible in applying city-specific
policies. The management of the Company closely monitored the relevant
policies and industry development trends to reduce its operational risks.
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RISK EXPOSURES (Continued)

Quality risk on property projects — quality of property projects not only affects
the profitability of property developers, but also exerts a considerable impact
on their corporate image and culture, and in turn their core competitiveness.
The Company established a sound project control mechanism in relation to
organizational structure, function division, recruitment and project
management by clearly defining job flows, standards and reward and
punishment system to enhance the implementation of other systems. Hence,
the quality of the projects is guaranteed and improved.

Risk of fluctuations in cinema revenue — subject to the nature of industry, box
office receipts represent a large part of revenue structure of cinema business.
In 2020, while the Group’s cinema business was hit hard by the Epidemic, but
at the same time provided a rare opportunity for the Company to strengthen
its internal capabilities and transform its operations digitally. During the period
of closure, the cinema implemented a series of measures to actively cope with
the Epidemic. Externally, the cinema was mindful of the country’s preferential
policies for the industry and fought for various subsidies; internally, it continued
to improve its own channels to further enhance the loyalty of its members.
Thanks to effective internal and external measures, the Company was able to
complete and initiate the resumption of the cinema programme as soon as
possible after the resumption of work, and was able to get back on track
quickly.

Risk of losing top creative talent — the Company'’s enterprise cloud services
business relies on core technical staff and key management personnel for
research, development and innovation. In an increasingly competitive
environment, maintaining a stable technical team and continuously attracting
high quality and talented people are key factors for the Company to maintain
its current market position and sustainability in the industry. Any future loss of
the Company’s core industry, product, operational, technical and management
talent would have an adverse impact on the Company. To address the above
risks, the Company has taken or intends to take the following measures: 1.
establishing a performance- and competency-based selection and
employment system to fully utilize the creative initiative and work potential of
employees; 2. establishing a sound and reasonable pay scale mechanism, and
setting salaries according to rank and competency; 3. establishing a flexible
and diversified talent training and allocation mechanism; 4. establishing a
talent crisis warning and control mechanism to reduce the loss caused by
talent loss; 5. building a team knowledge base, replicating team output, and
systematically storing key technical data.

Exchange risk — the Company is exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates as
the Group's revenue is denominated in Renminbi while Hong Kong dollars are
the reporting currency of the Group. The management will closely monitor the
exchange exposure in order to keep the net exposure at an acceptable level
and will consider effective hedging mechanisms to hedge significant foreign
currency exposures when necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Internal Audit and Monitoring Department is assigned with the task to
perform regular reviews on the Group's internal control systems in respect of
operational, financial and compliance aspects and will report the audit review
findings or irregularities, if any, to the management and advise on the
implementation of steps and actions required to enhance the Group's internal
controls. The result of internal audit reviews and agreed action plans are
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Apart from reviewing the systems, the Audit Committee has also reviewed and
is satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experiences of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget. The Board acknowledges that the management
has been progressively implementing an adequate internal control system to
ensure the effective functioning of the Group's operational, financial and
compliance areas, including the following key measures, policies and
procedures:

financial reporting management:

proper controls are in place to ensure the maintenance of a
complete, accurate and timely record of accounting and
management data;

regular reports on revenue and ageing analysis of receivables and
internal financial reports giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's financial performance are prepared for
the management;

quarterly updates on internal financial statements giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, financial position and prospects in sufficient details
are provided to all Directors; and

annual audit is carried out by external auditor to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting
policies and the applicable laws and regulations.

ii. the mechanism and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal work team (if
required), that any material information which comes to the knowledge
of any one or more officers should be promptly identified, assessed and
forwarded to the Board (if appropriate);
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EXREBRS

INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

i. the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and monitored
regularly by the Audit Committee designated by the Board,;

iv.  the Audit Committee designated by the Board to monitor, control and
regularly review continuing connected transactions of the Company
and ensure proper compliance with all relevant laws and regulations, the
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements; and

V. a whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group and those who
deal with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence, about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The Group encourages reporting with real
names and implements award policy if the reported suspicion is proved
to be the case. Such arrangement will be reviewed by the Audit
Committee to ensure that proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation into the matters.

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group’s systems for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and are not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
systems, accordingly consider the systems effective and adequate.
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1.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report published by the Group. The purpose of this report is to provide a
comprehensive overview of the Group’s commitment to sustainable
development in 2020, strengthen stakeholders’ understanding and
confidence in the Group, and promote the Group’s continuous
improvement.

Reporting scope

This report covers the core businesses of the Group from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020 (the “Year”), including cultural and media services,
property development, enterprise cloud services, news media business
and innovative business'. Extensive stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessments have also been carried out to determine the
materiality issues included in this report.

Reporting standards

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (hereinafter referred to as the “Guide”) set
out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The contents covered herein are
in compliance with the reporting responsibilities of “comply or explain”
and the reporting principles of “materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance” and
“consistency”. This report has been reviewed and confirmed by the
Board.

nou

Preparation of report

This report is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
above guidelines through steps such as information collection,
information review, report collaboration and management review, and
with the support of all stakeholders, we are able to better understand
the Group's current development in environmental and social aspects.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

While pursuing economic growth, the Group also takes into account the
sustainable development of the environment and society. We have
established a sustainable development management model, widely
listen to and adopt the opinions of various stakeholders, and further
integrate the concept of sustainable development into the daily
operation of the Group.

In the face of opportunities and challenges such as economic
globalization, social informatization, resource shortage and climate
change, we identify and implement the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (“SDGs") in the spirit of integrity, innovation and
pragmatism, which is related to the Group, and integrate the global
sustainable development trend into the Group’s development strategy
in a more targeted manner, so as to contribute to a better future.

Except for the total number of employees and the total number of employees by gender, age
group and geographical region, other indicators included in this report do not include
Crabtree & Evelyn.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIG - LB NEIBIRS

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 2, FAFERRES(E)
(Continued)
During the Year, we have identified the following SDGs that are material REE  BIHANE T ERNEFRELR
to the Group's operations. EEEMOAEEEAE -

Sustainable Development Goals(SDGs) Our Actions

AR B R B R (SDGs) BABITH

Environment
IRIR

- Conserve energy and water
RIRITE B
1 CLIMATE ACTION BRREER7K _
Promote paperless office

HEEERCHD

Waste sorting

[R R

Greenhouse gas emissions management

BEREBHNEERE

Employment and Equal employment opportunities

Labour Practices 3 %ﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬁm %géﬁﬁuﬁﬁn FERERE

BERETIER WELL-BEING = " ECONOMIC GROWTH - Recruit diverse talents
ST AT
Establish a robust training and promotion
system

2 EdI R E T &

e +  Protect worker's safety and health
e . BIRZREERE
m:uuxun:s - Provide reasonable remuneration and
— benefits
=) . ABRFHRIEF
v
Operating Practices - Conduct quality management
Ak e e EX - fIHMER M - FHEE . S
= ED) 9 22 S INDUSTRY, INNOVATION 16 AR HERE : : :
'AND INFRASTRUCTURE PEACE JUSTICEAND. - Safeguard information security
'0; * 1%@1%/%\?%
! - Protect intellectual property
s . EENBEE
- Control marketing content
BIEEHAR
Establish a clean supply chain
BRZMH e
Community By — « Show concern for the underprivileged
HE B . BilEsTae
WELL-BEING - Conduct volunteer activities
HARETLLH

4
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIG - LB NEIBIRS

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 2. AFHERRES ()
(Continued)
Sustainable Development Awards for the Year AEEAFEERKE
HKO1 won a number of press awards, including four US “Telly . BB KEZEFEE  BIE4EHH
Awards”, six “20th Annual Consumer Rights Reporting Awards” % B ZE B (Telly Awards) X482 ~ 618
and twelve “Spark Awards” [E20EEEERERBER] 12
18 [ MR
CE Dongli won a number of awards, including “2020 Innovative R B R ZIEMETE - B3R [2020
Products in Mobile E-Commerce (2020 % B E B <RI BIFTE M), BENVE R A AR ER ] - [2020%8)
“2020 Innovative People in Mobile E-Commerce (2020 #% &) & & BB EIFTAY ] - [2019-202045F
LB BIET AW, “2019-2020 Recommended Brands for Industrial EEXODHMSaSREREHE SR
Internet SaaS Service Users (2019-2020 4F [ & ¥ B B 48 SaaS IR K& |~ T20207 B SaaS%B I8 Bl FTE T € |
AP HEBMAR)", 22020 Innovative Products in China SaaS (2020 1 12020 4 & 7 & Saas IR 5 & (BT
H ElSaaS%R 1 Al 7 E m #8)" and “2020 Best Technology JiE FA 8%
Application in China Saa$S (2020 £F J& /1 B SaaS AR 75 & fE H 1i7 &
FA %)
HKO1 won the 20th Annual Consumer Rights
Reporting Awards HKO1 won a number of awards of “Telly Awards”

B 01 80 | 5 20 K B AT g 2

CE Dongli won the “2020 Innovative

EB 01 BRJE [Telly Awards | %18 #2718

CE Dongli won the “2020 Best Technology Application

Products in Mobile E-Commerce” in China SaaS”
B ) S [2020 BBV BRI RE (b B) 7 500 12020 4 & 7 B SaaS AR AS &R 1%
Bl E @ | B iy pE A 82

Annual Report 2020 / 2 -SFEFRK

81



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIG - LB NEIBIRS

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 2. AEFEZRES(E)
(Continued)
2.1 ESG Working Group 2.1 ESG I{E/Md

REAAEEN A AR T
& - BAPISLESG TYE/NE - LA BN
BEXEEERT Bt AITMEEER
AIREEROBEEMTE  FBEE
MzEE B M TR AR EER
Re2BR  BEEREAMEEEELE

In line with the Group's sustainable development work plan, we
have set up an ESG working group to assist the Board to supervise,
implement, execute and formulate policies and work related to
sustainable development, and actively explore and create
opportunities for positive social impacts by communicating with
various stakeholders to understand their opinions on the Group's

82

development.

Decision-making level

REE

- Establish at the board of directors of the

Company

- To formulate and take a leading role in

the Group’s ESG plans and ESG policies
as well as short-term, medium-term
and long-term goals

- To approve the contents of annual

ESG report

- To delegate ESG duties to various

functions and subsidiaries of the Group

- BT SBEEE ESG MRS ESG IR

Mt REEE

c EWRFEESGRERAR
- DI E B AL PRI S B A R

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / @82 ERAE)

ESGL{ERE

Communication level

BERE

- Establish at the securities department

of the Group

- To monitor and respond to annual

materiality issues and consider ESG
related opportunities

- To prepare the Group's ESG annual

report

- To form an ESG working group

consisted of employees from various
functions and subsidiaries

- To continuously strengthen the

communications with stakeholders

- RNEEE FEE
- ERPEHFEERNEE EE

ESGHERAH# B

- REEEESGFERE
- MRS RSHBARAR

#BRREY ESG TE/ MR

- FEE 0GR S s ARRE T R R

FENKE

Execution level

HiTE

- Establish at all functions and
subsidiaries of the Group

« To collect internal ESG related
policies and data

+ To comply with various ESG related
systems

+ To enhance employees’ awareness of
sustainable development

- RREE S BAEEPIR S M B AR

- BN E L ESG A BRI R PR I
i

- BSPRIBESGAHABHIE

- RAHEERAREREEH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT
(Continued)

2. AHERRES(E)

2.2 NRZHEBEHESE

2.2 Communication with Stakeholders

The Group considers the views and expectations of stakeholders
as an important factor in formulating our ESG strategy. We
identified external and internal stakeholders, including
shareholders, investors, employees, customers, media, suppliers,
community/non-government organisations, etc., and proactively
listened and understood their areas of concern through a variety
of channels to strengthen our sustainability management

capabilities.

The following are the main methods in which we communicate

with our stakeholders:

Major stakeholders

EE2FEEES

Shareholders
f&ER

Investors

KREH

Customers

P

Employees
8T

Suppliers
HER

Regulatory authorities
EERE

Business partners

X

Community/
Non-governmental
organisations

R, IEETE R

REBEFZSEE SO E R FHEE
BERMABFEESCHMNEZRE - &
Ik Bl 7 SM 3B R A BB FIZSAERE A
BIERE KEE BT TP #
o EREE s R IERTEES
FBRSEREETHIRENR T FME
PIHEL - AR A FERRE
BRIEES ©

T ARMER AR E B8
e

Main communication methods

Annual general meetings, interim and annual reports, corporate communications and
results announcements

BRAFAE PHRERFE  CEBAREERS

Results announcements
%zf /‘\tl:

Customer satisfaction surveys, customer service centers, visits by customer relationship
managers, daily operations/communications, telephone and e-mail
EERBERAT EPRBHL  EREBELCERD - BEEE /RN BELIME
Performance interviews, business briefings, seminars/workshops/lectures, employee
suggestion boxes, employee communication meetings

THERREH  EBE®R P/ TEY BE BIERM BEIAAK

i3

Supplier management procedures, meetings, supplier evaluation systems

HERERRRF - 8%  HERFGEHE

Meetings, compliance reports
@ - ARIE

On-site visits, meetings

R~ &3

Press releases, results announcements
MER - FELE

Strategic cooperation

REGES AR

Volunteer services, community activities, seminars/lectures/workshops, donations

EE  «HEE - e B TEY - B8Rt
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IRIG - HEBKREIBHS

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT
(Continued)

2.3 Materiality Assessment

We conducted an online questionnaire survey to interview
stakeholders’concerns on the Group's sustainable development
practices, which provided a reference for the formulation of
strategy with corporate characteristics and the key disclosure
scope of this report. Details are as follows:

RIS ()

23 EEMRETNME
BMFAESEERELATHT &
MBS HAEEAHERRER
MEDIHE - AN EAEEEREN
AREERRBNARENENKE
HERRTSE - HABATOT

Q We identiyed 21 ESG issues based on the Group’s operational development, the

22
AR ©

l. Issue identification

Ed=E gl

disclosure requirements of the Guide and peer analysis.

BIREAREELHR - (53] BWEERMETRELN - BBIH218

By inviting stakeholders to participate in the online questionnaire survey, the
Group collected their concerns on various ESG issues and their opinions and
expectations on the Group's sustainable development.

BBBHESNEARN 28R EREHM - WEMFIESESGRENRTIZE

Il. Stakeholder survey AR AEE T ERRTENE RS o

A 25 A6 BA 7 T

of materiality FE BB o

BEEEM

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / @8R ER AT

Based on the impact of the Group's strategic operation and the impact on
stakeholders, the materiality of each issue in the list was ranked by the results of the
questionnaire survey, and the materiality matrix for the Year was ynally analyzed.
RN EBEE S R IR E A AR
lll. Determination BB EREEE R R IEHE

ST EREMETE - &AM

MEBEREETHRF  REAMBHAFEEN



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIG - LB NEIBIRS

2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 2. AEFEZRES(E)
(Continued)

2.3 Materiality Assessment (Continued)

The Group'’s ESG materiality matrix in 2020 is shown below.

23 EEMZENMG(E)
ANEBE00FRE - HLERERE
D BEEENT -

Materiality matrix of ESG issues

ESGEEEEM 5 WiER

*X °
O <o
o
<
<
L2
3
&
S ©
> 1 | A
2H<
E=piC| O
U =
5= m ¢ =
> Ex
X A Oe
A A X
A
Materiality to Nan Hai
HEBNEZN
Business performance A Customer satisfaction and Employee health and safety
KBRS complaint handling BTfRERZS

Compliance operation
AREE

Anti-corruption
k&S

Anti-competitive practices

EPMEE MR

4 Health and safety of products/services

Emn/ RSHRERRZE

O Technology development and
product innovation

P EE K E el

O Intellectual property protection

Employee training and development
8 T3 Fg R

Prevention of child labour and forced labour

By LR (EZE T A8 %145 T

Talent recruitment

[RERETR TREEMBERE AT A
Procurement and supply chain ¢ Responsible marketing and promotion Green operation
management BETEERER EEE

R e E R

Service quality management ® Employmentrights Climate change
RiGEEER EFEER e RIEE L
Customer privacy and information security B Employee welfare Community charities
BEFBILFERESLE 8T HEAREE
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3.

STRENGTHENING COMPLIANCE OPERATION
3.1 Strengthening Integrity

The Group adheres to the principle of “integrity and diligence” and
strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations such as the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (7P % A R £ F1
A A)JE), Listing Rules and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the People’s Republic of China (FZEAREMBEARTIEE HF
J%). In order to further standardize the professional behavior of
employees, establish a good atmosphere of integrity, diligence
and dedication, and prevent acts that damage the Company’s
interests, the Group has formulated the “Anti-fraud Management
System” (= £F ¥ T {E & 32 | /£ ). Our anti-fraud policies and
related measures provide effective internal communication and
training to employees and management in different forms to
ensure that employees receive training on relevant laws and
regulations and professional ethics, and help employees identify
behaviours involving integrity and ethics. The Group has
established a comprehensive “Internal Audit System” (A 35 28 &1
/), which clearly defines the responsibilities and authorities of
internal control positions, and is required to strictly comply with
the “China Internal Audit Standards” (Ff B 1A #F & &+ % A1),
maintain integrity and free from interference from any company,
department and personnel within the Group, ensure that the
operating activities of each subsidiary are in compliance with laws
and regulations, and promote the successful achievement of
development strategies and business plans.

The Group adheres to a zero-tolerance attitude towards extortion,
bribery, fraud and money laundering. We have established a
whistle-blowing channel, under which any entity or individual can
report any unethical and dishonest behaviour to the Group in real
name by phone, email, etc. We encourage all departments to
communicate the information about the Group’s anti-fraud
policies and feedback channels to external customers and
suppliers, and maintain a smooth anti-fraud information channel.
We also conducted investigation and evidence collection based
on the principles of independence, objectivity and impartiality and
reported to the management or the Audit Committee. All
reported and investigated fraud cases will be filed in a timely
manner as required.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS
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STRENGTHENING COMPLIANCE OPERATION
(Continued)

3.2 Quality Management

The Group's business spans a wide range of industries, and each
business segment implements strict management procedures for
product quality and customer service. We comply with the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF 2 A R £ F1
E % J£), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests (AR ZE A R AL FNEDH
& & £ 25 1R [F J%) and other provisions on the protection of
customers’ legitimate rights and interests, and strive to create
high-quality safety products and services in accordance with the
development concept of exceeding customers’ expectations and
satisfying customers’ requirements, so as to continuously enhance
our brand reputation and credibility. During the Year, the Group
received 3,452 complaints with 99.9% settlement rate and 96.8%
customer service rating.

In the field of culture and media services, our customer service
methods involve WeChat terminal, call center, etc., and we have
comprehensively upgraded the call center and listened to our
customers in various ways to do our best for them. We have
formulated customer service specifications and service
management manuals for the Group’s cinemas to provide service
guidance in principle for customer service positions to meet
customer needs and enhance customer satisfaction.

In terms of product quality and safety, we did not have any
product return due to safety or health problems during the Year.
In the field of property development, the property management
company of the Group held a number of community cultural
activities, such as festival activities and experience activities, to
maintain the relationship with property owners and create a
harmonious and warm community atmosphere; formulated
property service standards, provided 24-hour real estate butler
services, and continued to promote professional capabilities,
communication services and good teams to higher business
development platforms. The property companies under the Group
improved the quality of construction products by regulating the
acceptance management of construction materials and products
for each construction project of the Group. At the same time, the
transmission process of engineering data and documents was well
defined, and engineering department shall strictly follow the
architectural drawings and construction drawings.

3.
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3.

STRENGTHENING COMPLIANCE OPERATION
(Continued)

3.2

33

Quality Management (Continued)

In the field of enterprise cloud services, CE Dongli has
implemented the “First Serve Accountability System” (& [ & 1T
1) which is handled by a professional customer service team. We
provide corresponding services or guidance in accordance with
the established procedures to effectively and consistently
maintain customer service quality.

In the field of news media business, HKO1 has established a
management process for product and technology development
projects, which requires quality control and quality reports for all
products in the development process, etc. HKO1 provides internet
promotion and technical support of electronic transactions to
small merchants to enhance the application of electronic
transactions and increase the brand penetration at the community
level.

Meanwhile, the Group understands the importance of responsible
marketing and ensures that sales and promotional information
comply with the relevant legal regulations such as the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China (A2 A R X ABIE&E7%).
All external disclosures must be internally reviewed and approved
before being released to the public to ensure that the public
receives accurate information and that no false information such
as misrepresentation or exaggeration is used to deceive
consumers.

Information Safety

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and
requirements of privacy protection and information protection
safety in the regions where it operates, such as the Regulations of
the People’s Republic of China for Safety Protection of Computer
Information Systems (P2 AR HE MBI E#E R EZHTLZER
(&) and the Measures for Security Protection Administration
of the International Networking of Computer Information
Networks (5F E#(E S @B BB BAE L 2REBTBIVE). In
terms of system information safety management, we manage the
collection, collation, storage, utilization and filing of files of various
departments, strengthen the storage of customer data and
documents safety, avoid the legal risks caused by the leakage of
customer personal information, and effectively protect customer
privacy. During the Year, the Group did not experience any
material incidents of data leakage.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / @8R ER AT
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STRENGTHENING COMPLIANCE OPERATION
(Continued)

3.4 Procurement Management

The Group strictly abides by the Bidding Law of the People’s
Republic of China (£ A R A B BIZIRAFE), the Regulation
on the Implementation of the Bidding Law of the People’s
Republic of China (1 2 A R £ M B8 2 112 B e 15 B1)) and
relevant local laws and regulations, and conducts our tenders and
procurements based on the principle of transparency, fairness and
integrity to prevent corruption and fraud. Each business segment
has developed a supplier and procurement management
framework that is suitable for its needs to monitor suppliers’
performance capabilities and service quality. The Group's suppliers
are diversified and mainly provide materials and equipment,
engineering construction and technical services for various
business segments.

In the field of culture and media services, cinemas under the
Group have established the “Centralized Procurement Process” (58
R B R #2) and “Centralized Procurement Supplier
Management Process” (5 1 £% i 4 FE 7 & 12 it 12), which
details the work process and supplier bidding process in respect
of procurement’s needs, tendering and procurement, confirmation
of suppliers, product acceptance, etc., and conduct annual
evaluation for suppliers to update the qualified supplier database.
Partners are required to sign the “Compliance Policy and Integrity
Agreement” (& # X %K B2 B 2 1 %) to strengthen the
compliance cooperation and integrity construction of both parties,
work together to combat corruption and fraud, and build a fairer
and more responsible industrial practices.

In the field of property development, Nan Hai Development has
formulated guidelines for the tendering and procurement of
suppliers, and conducts risk assessments for tendering and
procurement for each project, which are subject to approval to
ensure the quality of procurement.

In the field of enterprise cloud services, suppliers involved include
servers, network equipment and accessories, and domain name
providers. CE Dongli has formulated the “Procurement
Management System” (£ 38 & 3£ &l /Z), which advocates the
clear responsibilities of procurement, regulates the behavior of
procurement, ensures the quality of procurement, improves the
efficiency of procurement and enhances economic benefits.
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3.

4.

STRENGTHENING COMPLIANCE OPERATION
(Continued)

3.5 Intellectual Property

The Group respects intellectual property and prohibits any
infringement such as monopoly, counterfeiting and piracy in the
industry. We comply with relevant laws and regulations on the
protection of intellectual property rights such as the Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China (7P £ A R HL MBI pH1Z5%)
and the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China (FRZE AR
A B = F %) to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
the Group, and ensure that the Group'’s intellectual property is
respected and protected. During the Year, the Group had 58
registered patents.

In the field of culture and media services, we have formulated the
"Administrative Measures for Intellectual Property” (%0 28 2 12 &
32 3 5K) and the “Implementation of Articles” (& #& 4B BI]) to
regulate the processes of trademarks, patents, copyrights

application and use.

In the field of property development, we have formulated the
“R&D Project Establishment Management System” (fff 2 I8 B 3/
THEIZHIE) and the "R&D Confidentiality Management System”
(ff % 1R & & 32 %] [2) to protect the legitimate rights and
interests of the Company if infringement occurs.

In the field of enterprise cloud services, we have formulated the
“Intellectual Property Management System” (&0 2= # & F2 #1 2
to regulate the management of patents, copyrights, trademarks
and domain name registration, so as to protect the Company's
intellectual property rights.

FULFILLING ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection and
strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law of the People's
Republic of China (FF 2= A & £ # Bl IR 3% (R # /%), the Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (7 #£ A
R HERES ZB5587%) and the Law of the People's Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste
(P2 AR HE AN [E 88 RE )5 2 IR 3% [ )8 %) and other laws and
regulations related to environmental protection. As a listed company
with diversified businesses, while pursuing the creation of economic
value, we always adhere to the concept of harmonious development
with the environment and are committed to the green business. During
the Year, we did not receive any cases of non-compliance in relation to
environmental regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS
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FULFILLING ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

4.1

4.2

Carbon Emission Control

In order to closely monitor the Group's green operations and
energy saving results, environmental data from each business
segment is collected and fully documented through this reporting
platform so that we can track the data sources and prepare for
future target setting.

We have disclosed and compared the greenhouse gas emissions
and energy consumption in the report in a transparent manner,
striving to reduce the carbon footprint in our operations and
achieve a low-carbon economy. To calculate the GHG emissions
performance of environmental Key Performance Indicators (KPIs),
we refer to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol developed by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development and the 1SO14064-1 published by the International
Standardization Organization to ensure compliance with the
reporting principles of consistency. In 2020, the Group's
greenhouse gas emissions amounted to 66,585.64 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent.

Green Operation

The significant impacts of the Group’s business activities on the
environment and natural resources mainly include electricity
consumption, office resources consumption, greenhouse gas
emissions and air pollutant emissions in daily office operations. We
ensure efficient use of resources in our operations, while
encouraging the reuse and recycling of waste, reducing energy
consumption and conserving water, in order to reduce the
environmental and human impact of our production and
operation activities, protect biodiversity and develop a green and
circular economy.

Air Emissions Management

The Group's air emission comes from the use of Group's vehicles
and consumption of gaseous fuel. During the Year, 769.42kg of
nitrogen oxides, 3.80kg of sulphur dioxide and 37.47kg of
particulate matter were emitted by the Group. We will effectively
reduce emissions through continuous monitoring and
maintenance.

Please refer to Appendix | for sustainability data.
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4.

FULFILLING ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

4.2 Green Operation (Continued)

Energy Conservation

In 2020, according to the prevention and control of Epidemic and
industry regulatory requirements in various regions of the PRC, the
Group's cinemas were temporarily suspended for most of the
time, resulting in a significant decrease in electricity consumption.
During operations, the Group consumed a total of 83,545,382.70
kilowatt hours of electricity and 305,840.80 tonnes of steam. The
Group also regularly reviews and updates its green office practices
and actively promotes the concept of a carbon footprint reduction
among its employees to continuously reduce the environmental
impact of its business operations and implement effective energy
management. The following table sets forth the energy saving
measures adopted by the Group in 2020:

4. BITRERE(E)

4.2 BRBEZ(E)

BiAIBEIR

F20204F » RE AP B &M &R
BERITHEEEESR - AEEFZRAE
SREEEEE  ALEEEAET
o AEETEZRETNBREES
58354538270 F LI~ A2 A
305,840.80 MF o N5 B I8 F B AR [
B ER AT - EiRWE TR
WIRE S - HERRERES
HIRRHTE BEBMGERERE -
TRF R A LB R 20205 AERELA
BiREFEHE

@ ® Use glass partitions to deploy natural light at the Group’s headquarters

L REE@EAFBHEHERR - TOMBE RN

Lighting systems ® Adopt lighting colour management systems at the Group’s cinemas

IREARS REBS R AR EREE R4

NMERPAER - BUVEIEEE

® Turn o the lights when the o°ce areas are not in use

® |Install independent switches to avoid turning on unnecessary lightings

RIBI R B RRN YRR RAEE

® Prioritize to replace energy saving lightings if needed

MBERIE R - BELERHER

® (lean all lightings on a regular basis to maintain and improve e°ciency

EHERER - REF MR R

Air-conditioning
systems o

g oL AR AERIEES

% ® Setidle computers to enter auto standby/sleep mode

REBMEEREABBFHERE

Electronic devices B} ) ) ) i
and appliances ® Turn o electronic devices completely during non-working hours

ETrRBERESR RIETIER I E FRET 2R

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS

® (lean the ylters and fan coil units to maintain the e°ciency of air conditioning systems
EHEARBERIREXEAE - REFEFHFY

Turn o™ the air conditioners when the o°ce areas are not in use
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FULFILLING ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

4.2 Green Operation (Continued)

Water Conservation

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 615,428.83 tonnes
of water and 133,857.88 tonnes of reclaimed water in its
operations. In order to continuously save water, we have adopted
the following specific measures:

Turn off the tap

Immediate repair of dripping taps

Regular checking of water meter readings and hidden water
leakage

Use of reclaimed water

Waste Management

The Group promotes waste reduction at source and ensures waste
is properly sorted, treated, reused and recycled. We advocate
paperless office and establish an information platform covering
various aspects of office management to promote the integration
of process management, centralized office operation, real-time
inquiry of rules and regulations and information release. During
the Year, we produced 2,277,465.59 kg of non-hazardous waste
and 209,680.22 kg of recycled waste, and produced 10,905.59 kg
of hazardous waste’.

Paper saving

B4 A4
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Waste management

R EE

The Group uses an electronic office system (OA System) to
replace its paper-based office administration system.
ANEEE A EF A RET (OA System) BRACLAAK 3R 52 8%
AERNRRETHRRS

Post paper-saving signs at the prominent places to remind
our employees to copy documents on both sides or re-use

paper
BRERMET  REBIRAEEZHIERABTR
4@

Place recycling bins next to the printers to collect waste
paper for further processing

RITENH S R BRI - MW EEARBEE—FR
i

Re-use paper or print documents on both sides

B AT BN

Use waste paper for note-taking

AR E

Data includes the amount of hazardous waste generated from computers, batteries, used ink
cartridges, used toner cartridges, computer monitors and tablets.

3

Reduce the use of disposable and non-
recyclable products

VAR D 158 R — M e A BT 3 W ) E

Assess material usage and avoid overstocking
HEMHAE  BREFEBRE

Re-use envelopes, binders, file cards and
other stationery
EXRNAEE
=R m

Re-use penholders with pen refills to avoid
abandoning the entire pen
ERBMBLABENAER  BL2EM
BXE

Waste sorting and recycling

B3 3 HE R UL

BB EBERRREMX

BREEENK 1 ER22  BERHE  SRBRES
MFREMEFEERNELE -
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4. FULFILLING ENVIRONMENTAL 4., BITRIERE(HE)
RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
4.2 Green Operation (Continued) 42 #ZBEZ (&)
Waste Management (Continued) JEEYEIE (1)

Case: Waste Sorting Management in Sino-i Campus

RIS E  BBRHELARSEEE

In response to the official implementation of the “Regulations on the Management of Domestic Waste in Beijing” (1t
B AR Bk B K BI) on 1 May 2020, we further promoted the waste sorting in the Sino-i Campus. By
changing the location of waste bins in the campus and office areas, employees are encouraged to produce less
waste and are guided to separate waste. Food waste bins are no longer set in the office area, and only recyclable
waste and other waste bins are placed; hazardous waste stations are set at designated locations in the campus; food
waste bins are only placed in designated areas where dining is allowed. Taking into account the actual situation of
the campus, the Group has established a take-away dining area that integrates meal collection, dining, rest and
waste classification, which effectively classified waste and created a warm and comfortable place for employees.
AEEN 202045 A1 B ERBHEAIGERTAEERRE R GG - KM —PHTHETRBE RN RS EIE -
FRMEERMBEARVFROMLE RO BTRENFNER - ARSI BMPEETRIROE - AR FHR
ERFERNIRAR - (EREATA] B IR - Bt R ARSI IR AR BN IR R EEE RN EE - FEARER
EIREAFRENRISER - AnH EnEaBRERIETET SRE B KR  NESBEER—BH
SNERER - ARCETNIRBED ENRE - b8 8 TITE—FERBNE Ea KR

Takeaway dining area and sitting area in the campus Bin locations in the campus
% AR SN B B A R R % A SRR AR B
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4. FULFILLING ENVIRONMENTAL 4. BITRIREE ()

RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

4.3 Green Design 4.3 BREEF
The Group actively explores the field of green building. In the field NEFBRBIGERgGEBRESES - £F
of property development, Nan Hai Development aims to design MR LEY - MR R AR
and build energy-efficient and environmentally-friendly properties, B RREMRERENWELSB
and is committed to ensuring that our buildings meet the national 2 BOBREMNEETSBEKRY
requirements for green building standards and reduce the impact LREOIREMIZE RO EIRBEIER A
on the environment. Since the stereoscopic greening project of FE BRERBBENIFEGERE
“Free Man Garden” won the Gold Award for Overseas Projects %150 [BHRATEE] W&t T
from LIAS Awards in Singapore in 2019, Cui Lu Technology T2 L MEFT I LIAS Awards /BHNEE &
continued to promote the research and development of HRA 14 - PR FEZ B HE T B4
stereoscopic greening technology system during the Year to (L EITEE A3 - EDm e AT
continuously satisfy people’s pursuit of a better urban life. MEFATERHESK ©

Case: Research and Development of Green Technology System of Cui Lu Technology

RPIDE  BENERERMEAT R

() A number of products are included in the “Catalogue of Applicable Technologies and Products for
Green Building in Shenzhen”

In March 2020, a number of products of Cui Lu Technology were included in the “Catalogue of Applicable
Technologies and Products for Green Building in Shenzhen”. The catalogue aims to further standardize the
green construction industry market, help the industry fully understand the technologies and products
applicable to urban green buildings, promote technological innovation, set industry benchmarks, and provide
systematic technical and product application references for projects, so as to create high-quality green
buildings.
(=) ZHERABRCRITREELEARIMEERIERE &)

20203 F - RERBZHERABCRYITACREERARMMEEREE RS  ZEHSEE TR
BHERETENS  BITEEE 7 BATACREERNRIMMER - HBRHRER - B 725
1B REARHASHNBNEERERAZEZ  KniTEsnENaERE -

A number of products of Cui Lu Technology are
included in the “Catalogue of Applicable Technologies
and Products for Green Building in Shenzhen”

RER R Z IAE m AR ORYITHAR 32 5558 f &
B HEE B 85
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4. FULFILLING ENVIRONMENTAL 4., BOTRIREME(IE)
RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
4.3 Green Design (Continued) 4.3 #FEREE (E)

Case: Research and Development of Green Technology System of Cui Lu Technology

RPIDE  BENE R AT R

(I) “Green Black Technology for the Vertical” — The intelligent respiratory curtain wall system was
first introduced

In August 2020, Cui Lu Technology exhibited the newly developed intelligent respiratory curtain wall system
at the 16th International Green Building and Building Energy Saving Conference and New Technology and
Products Expo (B +NERIRiEELERENEAGENRMEERBEER) (the “Green Expo”) for
the first time. The system has been awarded a number of national patents, with the core advantages of
assembly, integration, automation and intelligence, and has integrated various functions such as automatic
plant-picking and placing of module and automatic leaf pruning, which is a new system that will revolutionise
existing vertical greening techniques.
(Z) TEERLLBENE | —ERTRBEEREERS

20205F8 A - REMBN [FHNERRRECEEEZENEASENNNRERTES | (FHHgEe)
BRED T HHAENEETRERAS - ZFRAREZHBEREN - ER(L - £ - B3 - B
ERZOES - SR T BBERNEYRLE  BREEMYRESZEDE R ERUNENREGEAAR
{E TR 2R 547

Intelligent respiratory curtain wall system developed by
Cui Lu Technology
REER R A S BT A R4
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PROMOTING EMPLOYEE GROWTH

Talent is the foundation for the sustainable development of an
enterprise. On the basis of protecting the basic rights and interests of
employees, the Group strengthens the team building from the three
aspects of talent introduction, training and development, striving to
create a warm and competitive working environment for our excellent
team and promote the mutual growth of employees and the Group.

5.1 Rights and Benefits

The Group complies with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China (R #E AR MBI 4 E))%), the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China (2 A R A B &5 8) & [F5%)
and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the
People’s Republic of China (P 2E AR LML HFRE T TE)
and other labour and social security regulations, including signing
labour contracts with employees as required, prohibiting forced
labour and the use of child labour, anti-discrimination against age,
gender and any other aspects, to protect the legitimate rights and
interests of employees. We ensure that the candidates have
reached the legal working age by checking their identity
documents in recruitment processes. During the Year, the Group
did not have any non-compliance cases relating to child labour or
forced labour.

Each subsidiary of the Group has formulated the “"Employee
Handbook “( & T3t for its employees, which sets out the requirements
on remuneration and dismissal, employee benefits, recruitment
and efficiency management, working hours, holidays, etc., and
specifies the rights, responsibilities and obligations of employees
during their service period, so as to establish a fair system for
employees to serve the Group and provide them with
opportunities for professional development. We also determine
the annual human resources development plan in accordance
with the “Guidelines on Annual Business Plan and Budget
Management” (F B L5 8| R TEE B T1EHES|), including
organizational structure, labour cost budget, talent development
plan, etc.
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5.

PROMOTING EMPLOYEE GROWTH (Continued)

5.1

5.2

Rights and Benefits (Continued)

In terms of employees recruitment, the Group attracts talents
through various channels such as online recruitment, headhunting
recruitment, campus recruitment and internal recommendation
to achieve reasonable allocation of human resources. In terms of
remuneration and benefits, the remuneration of the Group's
employees is based on their competitiveness, experience, skills
and job qualification requirements, and annual salary review will
be conducted. In addition to providing employees with statutory
benefits, such as five social insurances and one housing provident
fund and statutory holidays, we also provide employees with
health check-ups and festival benefits. All business segments will
provide supplementary benefits to employees according to their
corporate characteristics. For example, in the field of culture and
media services, the Company provides free electronic movie
tickets to encourage employees who do not work in cinemas to
watch movies in the cinemas of the Group. We have formulated
the “Guidelines on Organizational Performance and Bonus
Incentives” (4B 4 48 2 B2 52 & 21 B) T YE 45 3|) to continuously
improve the organizational performance appraisal system, and set
bonus incentives based on the annual performance appraisal
results to meet the career needs of employees for continuous
growth and self-realization.

The Group stipulates that dismissal shall be conducted in
accordance with the circumstances as defined in the Employee
Handbook and relevant regulations, and prohibits any unfair or
unreasonable dismissal. For employees who resigned voluntarily,
we understand and collect the reasons of their resignation for
analysis in order to enhance the competitiveness of our talent
retention. The Group also has employee disciplinary appeal
procedures, and any employee subject to objection is entitled to
file a written complaint to us. All complaints are treated
confidentially.

Employee Development

The Group attaches great importance to the training of
employees’ skills and quality. In addition to arranging new
employees to receive training, we also provide employees with
training on their job capabilities according to the needs of
different positions. The training mainly covers work ethics,
corporate culture, general skills, etc. We believe that the
competence of our employees is essential to maintain and
enhance our competitiveness. Therefore, we will also understand
the needs of our employees and review the effectiveness of our
training in order to plan our training for the coming year.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / @8R ER AT
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PROMOTING EMPLOYEE GROWTH (Continued)

5.2 Employee Development (Continued)

The subsidiaries of each business segment provide diversified
training platforms for employees based on their own business
characteristics. In the field of culture and media services, a total of
2 sessions of induction training for new employees and 4 types of
in-service training programs were held this year. In addition,
during the Year, Dadi Media held the annual commendation
ceremony for employees by presenting awards on site and
receiving them online, to express appreciation to employees for
their dedication and support to the Group.

In the field of property development, our Guangzhou properties
regularly conducts internal training by personnel at or above the
supervisory level on a rotational basis, the topics of which mainly
focus on service etiquette, professional knowledge, work technical
skills, working methods and mental adjustment of positions, so as
to improve employees’ management ability and job skills.

In the field of enterprise cloud services, CE Dongli held a number
of themed trainings, including product sales, team building etc,,
which helped to cultivate talents management and systematic
management thinking of the management of CE.

In the field of news media business, Shihua Wanxiang mainly
provides training on corporate strategic positioning, professional
tool use, business guidance and experience sharing to employees.

In the coming year, we will further strengthen the Company’s
talent echelon construction, laying a solid foundation for
sustainable development.

Offline training for new employees
FE T ARG TEI
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Annual commendation ceremony of Dadi Media
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5.

PROMOTING EMPLOYEE GROWTH (Continued)
5.3 Health and Safety

The Group always values the physical and mental health of
employees and is committed to maintaining the safe working
environment for employees. We comply with relevant
occupational health and safety regulations such as the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases ({1 2E A R F1 BB 2578 7%) and the
Production Law of the People’s Republic of China safety (F 2 A
R #£ 1 B & & 4 E %), and regularly identify, monitor and
review the potential risks of various business departments. During
the Year, the number of lost days due to work injury was 828 days.

Since the commencement of the epidemic prevention and
control work in early 2020, the Group has taken prompt actions
and adopted various guidelines and measures to actively
cooperate with the government in epidemic prevention. We
require all business segments to ensure the orderly operation of
production and operation under the premise of strict
implementation of epidemic prevention and control
requirements, and provide strong guarantee for employees’ good
working environment and work order. Each business segment has
established an internal organizational structure for epidemic
prevention and control, clarified the emergency procedures and
personnel responsibilities of the Company for epidemic
prevention and control, and ensured the implementation of the
main responsibility of epidemic prevention and control. All
subsidiaries must continue to keep track of the epidemic situation
of employees, and properly carry out communication and
prevention and control related work among employees. We
prepare supplies for epidemic prevention and control such as
infrared thermometers, disinfectant water and masks for
employees, and arrange professional disinfection companies to
disinfect the office. All employees are subject to body temperature
checks before they are on duty every day. Each business segment
implements telecommuting or flexible working arrangements as
needed.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / fi@iZRERA
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PROMOTING EMPLOYEE GROWTH (Continued) 5. REBTHE (#)
5.3 Health and Safety (Continued) 53 REREZ2 (&)

Case: Nucleic Acid Testing for Employees in Beijing

R{IFE  ARETETERRRA

In order to protect the health and safety of our employees, the Group appointed a professional testing institute to
conduct nucleic acid tests for our employees in Beijing in batches in June 2020 to prevent the Epidemic.

RREETINRENERLZ 2  AEEBRBEERRAKE S ML RE TETRERRA - RS -

Testing site is ready for inspection Pharyngeal swab sampling of employees by
HR0ORI 355 1t 22 85 ok professional testing institute inspectors

EERBRAAERE TETWAE FEER

Case: Annual Health Check for Employees

RAHET: ATFERR

To facilitate the needs of the employees in the Sino-i Campus, the Group relocated the medical check-up centre to
the Sino-i Campus on 23 November 2020, allowing the employees to visit the warm and temporary medical check-
up centre while they are at work. General medical check-ups such as blood tests, vision tests and electrocardiogram
tests can be conducted in the Sino-i Campus.

AEBRTEHGEEERNETHE - 102020 11 523 BiEEmT ORE T BISHE SRR CHNET
R LIDEEORBRM T RABRT L - —RIOBRIRR - MM - RARRE LEREBUARIRESHE
[ RS AR

Temporary medical examination equipment in the Employees are undergoing a general medical check-
Sino-i Campus up programme
A I E A B ER A B AR AR 1 S TIEE{T—REVEERIA R
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5.

PROMOTING EMPLOYEE GROWTH (Continued)
5.3 Health and Safety (Continued)

The Group’s Sino-i Campus Service Center in Beijing office
premises regularly cooperates with the administrative
departments of each unit to inspect the fire safety in the office
building of each unit. During the inspection, administrative safety
employees were instructed to familiarise themselves with fire-
fighting equipment such as fire hydrants, fire extinguishers,
manual alarm buttons and fire roller shutters, as well as evacuation
signs and to familiarise themselves with the evacuation routes for
employees in each area. Executives and employees
representatives attend fire safety training and receive practical first
aid skills training as required by the Sino-i Campus Service Centre.
In the field of property development, it is stipulated that
employees shall abide by labour discipline, earnestly implement
safety production rules and regulations and operating procedures,
and properly wear and use labour protection products to prevent
accidents.

Fire safety training at Sino-i Campus
ISR 22153
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PROMOTING EMPLOYEE GROWTH (Continued)
5.4 Employee Activities

In order to further enhance the team spirit and cooperation
awareness of employees and strengthen the communication and
exchange among colleagues, the Group regularly organizes
different types of activities for employees, such as autumn outings,
employee sports games, corporate culture activities and special
activities for various festivals. Through such exchange activities,
the physical and mental health of employees were relaxed and
the cohesion of the organization was further enhanced, enabling
employees to show better leadership and management skills in
their positions, thereby effectively implementing the Group's
corporate culture.

Outdoor activities for employees

BTEIMIREE
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Corporate culture activity

EX(LES

Case: Snow Leopard Conservation Project at Sino-i Campus

RS E : FBRHEEHREER ]

The Group invited WWF's public advocacy expert to Sino-i Campus to talk to employees about snow leopard
conservation and organised a public awareness campaign on ecological responsibility through the form of
children’s drama to enhance employees’ understanding of biodiversity and ecological conservation.
AEERFERAEAESEARBEERINBHLRE - ME TMBRENRENTIE - AREBZERBINT
N EESEEESRN T HEAREEEZNAREE TS - BB E THEY S T MAERIRERN R -

Promotion board at the Sino-i Campus Promoting snow leopard conservation through drama
IR BUS I E B S FiR [S59 ] ABBITZZUETERRREE [
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6.

BUILDING A BETTER SOCIETY

The Group has established a presence in various regions and has
received strong support and attention from the government and the
public for a long time. Therefore, we regard giving back to the society
and promoting the prosperity and progress of the community as an
important social responsibility, and support the prosperity and
development of the community in many aspects.

In the area of news media business, HKO1 actively cooperates with
community organizations to help the grassroots fight against the
epidemic. In the field of enterprise cloud services, CE Dongli provides
professional technology for public welfare institutions to support and
assist in the development of legal service projects in the field of disability.
In the future, we will continue to bring together our hearts, devote our
love and care, and live up with the harmonious community.

Case: Nanhai Charity Platform “Haibei Project”

EPa A

BRETE ERGE

() Donation of clothes to warm people in winter
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On 12 October 2020, the Group held an old clothes donation activity in the Beijing and Shenzhen offices, which
was well received by employees and raised nearly 35 boxes of clothing in a short time of one week. On 26
October, we sent each piece of clothing with our full love and care to Jiela Village, Guansha Village, Agala Village,
Shaning Village and Golodaoza Orphanage, Zhaba Town, Hualong County, Haidong City, Qinghai Province,

bringing warmth to local people.

(=) THRBRYEE AL

20205F 10 A 12 B - AEEEILRENRY ERAZTRRERBREE  AXBEAETAREE  EE
— AR - ABEE3SAERY - HFN 10826 - BE—HAFHZRMWMOE O EBBIENRDEEE

BREBRTCEFILEEEN - BN - MREMN - DENERZEIIMAR - RELRX
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All clothing donations are sorted and delivered to areas of need
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6. BUILDING A BETTER SOCIETY (Continued) 6. IMEEWFHE ()

Case: Nanhai Charity Platform “Haibei Project”

ROIPE : EEARFE[EBHE ]

(I) The accompanying tutor programme in 2020
Based on the public welfare value of “Child-Friendly”, the Group cooperated with Beautiful China in October 2020
to jointly launch the accompanying tutor programme. A total of 29 volunteers were recruited for this programme,
of which 27 were internal volunteers of the Group. 15 accompanying tutors were selected through screening
and interviews at all levels. During the one-month period, the accompanying tutors matched with the children
on a one-to-one basis to set up a reading plan, read the books together, follow the plan with telephone tutoring
and keep track of the journey with letters.

(=) 2020 FHEEMIEE
AEEEN [RERT | AREEE - R2020F 10 FEEBHBEAE - KRFAR T HESBRER - thXH
HEEE  RMAEBE2MERE  ER/NALEERASERE - MESHEEREEENGFEKAH -
SARPGE IS EEER c A —EAMREA - HEESAEZ M —H T - — 85 EHES - XRH
BEE  WIRBATEIHETEENE  BEEIHHERER -

Letters to children from accompanying tutors
HEEMB 4Nz TFHE
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6. BUILDING A BETTER SOCIETY (Continued) 6. IMEEWFHE ()

Case: HKO1’s “Business Heart Partnership (1% /0: = B )" Scheme

ROIDE : BRI LHELERMH]FHE

In 2020, HKO1 launched the “Business Heart Partnership” (1% /0 & %) scheme, which connects caring enterprises
and charitable organizations on the “01 Heart” (01 /22 &.) platform, together with professional and inspiring news content,
using internet technology and communication power, to make more people aware of and respond to corporate
philanthropy. In particular, HKOTand Ola Tech, an electronic product recycling platform, donated 1,000 “Anti-
Epidemic Packs” with masks, rice and other items to the elderly in need through charitable organizations such as the
Fu Hong Society, the Hong Kong Women Workers' Association, the CEDAR Fund and the Love & Care for the Sick
Foundation during the early stages of the Epidemic.

BB 2020 FHH [ELERMHIFE - EBSLEEM0LE] FELNEEER  RAZXNEER
ROFEAD  EREBEREREZENE B2 AMBEREECEER - Hd - FHNEETFEREK
FAOlaTechMEBFRENHEFIBHARNE - BREWESK 1,000 [MELEE] - BRERSAEE - 1k
g EARLASIHE  HELET BHEREEASY BRATERENRE -

Volunteers distribute masks and food to Volunteers visit homes and distribute
grassroots elderly “ Anti-Epidemic Packs”
EINDBROSRBRYSEMETERERSE =T FPIFRGRE [HELEE ]
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APPENDIX I: SUSTAINABILITY DATASTATEMENTS [fiff— : MiZARENIEHE

Environmental KPIs RIEERENEE Unit B 2020 £

BERBHHE

Greenhouse gas emissions

Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 & 2) BEREINEE (B 1R2) tonnesof COse —ElEE 66,585.64
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity BRERBEREBE
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity per square meter* & F 7K HEE & tonnes of COe/ k=l

square meter B2/ FhHK 004
Fuel consumption MEHFE
Vehicle gasoline consumption HEEAN TS liter # 116,855.63
Vehicle diesel consumption BHEEAMLHR liter # 14,012.00
Natural gas consumption KARAE m? AR 1,524,965.60
Liquefied petroleum gas consumption RitABARAE m? MK 3,84165
Energy consumption BERUH#E
Total electricity consumption EHEE kwh TR 83,545,382.70
Electricity consumption intensity per square meter EEXE (BFAK) kWh/square meter T E B /752K 5049
Purchased steam 9|\,ﬁ§?’ﬁ I tonnes i 305,840.80
Municipal water consumption mHAKE
Total municipal water consumption MRAKEE tonnes i 61542883
Municipal water consumption intensity per square meter mBFAKEE (BF 75 K) tonnes/square meter M8,/ 52K 037
Reclaimed water consumption hkfEAE
Total reclaimed water consumption FKERLEE tonnes 7] 133,857.88
Hazardous waste BEEEY
Total hazardous waste generated® AERRNELHEES kg TR 10,905.59
Hazardous waste intensity per employee BEEZEYBE(BREI)  kg/employee Fr/81 069
Non-hazardous waste BEBEN
Non-hazardous waste generated %@%%F FEs kg TR 227746559
Non-hazardous waste intensity per employee BEEZEYEE(BEEL)  kg/employee Tr/8I 143.25
Non-hazardous waste recycled EEEEYOIAE kg = 209,608.22
Decoration waste generated %1@2*&?‘ 58 kg S5} 1,200.00
Paper consumption ERFERAE
Paper R kg T 48,240.00
Paper consumption intensity per employee BEEARE(FRETL) kg/employee Tr/8I 303

4 Area refers to floor area per square metre. ¢ HEABTFAKEEHES -
s Data includes the amount of hazardous waste generated from computers, batteries, used ink 5 BEOFREK Bt BR2 - BEEHE - EKE

cartridges, used toner cartridges, computer monitors and tablets.

MTREMSHEFRNELE -
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APPENDIX I: SUSTAINABILITY DATA STATEMENTS

(Continued)
Social KPIs

Total number of employees

(by gender)
Total number of female employees
Total number of male employees

Directly employed employees
(by employment type)

Supervisory level and below

Managers (including deputy managers and
senior managers)

Director level and above

Directly employed employees
(by age group)

Aged below 35 (excluding 35)

Aged 35-45 (including 35 but not 45)

Aged 45 and over (including 45)

Directly employed employees
(by geographical region)
Total number of employees in Mainland China
Total number of employees from overseas,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / @82 ERAE)

HERBENER

EEAH
(RMEHIED)

T EBAH

BHESEH

EERANES
(RERER)
TERRATET
KRR (2RISR -
RREE)ET
BERMALET

EEEANES

(RERARES)
5T (RS 355%)
355455 (B35 B 455%)
455 R IAE (B 455%)

EERANES
(REEED)

hEAMS TRH

BIRERAME B THH

Psg— : AR REBIRIGE ()

Unit

person

person
person

person
person

person

person
person
person

person
person

By
N -

A
A

A

A

A
AE

AZ
AZ

15,899

8,075
7824

13,725

1,771
403

12,470
2315
1,114

14,888
1,011



APPENDIX 1I: INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIG - HHEKEIBHRS

ESG REPORTING GUIDE

A. Environmental
A REHE
A1 Emissions

AT B

A2 Use of Resources

A BRER

General Disclosure

Al
Al12
A13
Al4
A1S5
A6

—RBE

A1
A12
A13
Al4
A15
Al6

General Disclosure
A2.1
A2.2
A23

A24

A25

—RKE
A2

A22
A23
A24
A25

B 8% —
HERE

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

BBEERRERBHN  FAKRIMEOES BEEREERENNELS
0 @BE: ROETHETABEAZENEBDEERANNER -

BER B8 AR B B

RERBAHEREREE -

MELRERENREREE -

MELRZREENBENEE -

TR E B E MR A EAR -

HLRBEAEREERENNE HEELENBBRABRR -

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or ail) in total
and intensity.

Water consumption in total and intensity.

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to
per unit produced.

BRERER(BEER  KREMRMH)HBE -
RENENNERER/SEERER(NE - RIoh) BFERTE -

BFRKEREE

TEELFIWJ?E%)& sat B RFTSHRE

HHCSKEGER KR A ERERE - A RRARKRE T B RAERR ©
HXRAABEMHNEERBEEENES -
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Descriptions Relevant chapter
EERR HREH

Fuffilling Environmental
Responsibility

Green Operation
Carbon Emission Control
Green Operation
Green Operation
Green Operation
Green Operation

BITRBAR

REES
TRHk B
REES
REES
REES
REES

Green Operation

Appendix I: Sustainability
Data Statements

Green Operation

Green Operation

Green Operation

Not applicable as no
packaging materials is
manufactured or
produced by the Group

BEEE

Migk— : AIREER
YERE

BEEE

BEEE

BREEE

Nam  TEEERE
HEEBEMK

BEEFR
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APPENDIX 1I: INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
ESG REPORTING GUIDE (Continued)

fgk— - ERMESXHA(RIR -
HERESBEESDRSI ()

Descriptions Relevant chapter
EERR HREH

A3 The Environment and ~ General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the environment and

Natural Resources

MIRERRAER
B. Social
B. #EERE

B1 Employment

B2 Health and Safety

BRERELRE

B3 Development
and Training

B3 B RiE3l

A3

—RKE
A3

General Disclosure

B1.2
—RBE
B1.1
B1.2

General Disclosure

B2.1
B22
B23

—RKE
B2
B2.2
B23

General Disclosure

B3.1
B32

—RBE
B3
B3.2

natural resources.

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.
REBTAGRERRARERELNERZERNLER
HREREDHIRERANERNEAZ ERE AN ER AT ENTH

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
ERZMREE BERER IERY R TERE Sl RIX
BAREMEBREFN : @FEK : ROETHETABEAYENERE
BRBRGIER -

Rith - EREL  FRANRMESNEELE -

RIER - FERAR LRI DHERRALE -

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

Lost days due to work injury.

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
BERRHZ2IHERERRREESHEBENLES  @BK : RO)ETYH
BITAREATENRRZERANNEH -
RIEBRMETHABRLE

RIGHRAIERS

BTN BERRER 2R - LRABRTRERRE

Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

BRRMEERTIERANAB RREMEUR - HiEHIIEE -
RERRESERZNNZIEEB DN -
RUERREEERZS - BHEETHRIIN TR -

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / @82 ERAE)

Fulfilling Environmental
Responsibility
Fulfilling Environmental
Responsibility
BIIRRERE
BIIRRERE
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APPENDIX 1I: INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
ESG REPORTING GUIDE (Continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIG - HHEKEIBHRS

Bt 8% — :

 ERBAXAMRE
HERESBEESDRSI ()

Descriptions Relevant chapter
EERR HREH

B4 Labour Standards

B4 4 T %8|

B5 Supply Chain
Management

BS e E 2

B6 Product Responsibility

B6 EMETE

General
Disclosure

B4
B4.2
—RBE

B4.1
B4.2

General
Disclosure

B5.1

B5.2

—RBE
B5.1
B5.2

General Disclosure

B6.1
B6.2
B63
B6.4
B6.5

—RBE

B6.1
B6.2
B63
B64
B6.5

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced
labour.

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and

forced labour.

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
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fitipaT R BRI AR R E T 8% %
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Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
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AEHTERENNREASRE  ARBRE

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with.
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIG - HLEKEIBHRS

APPENDIX II: INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE gg— - FEEBWSZTHMRE -
ESG REPORTING GUIDE (Continued) HERESBEESDRSI ()
Descriptions Relevant chapter
EEAR RBED
B7 Anti-corruption General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations ~  Strengthening Integrity

that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the ~ /
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

B72 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are  Strengthening Integrity
implemented and monitored.
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B

B7.2 M SEERERERF  ARBBRTREENE - ZERZ

B8 Community Investment General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities  Building a Better Society
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities' interests.

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Building a Better Society
B82 Resources contributed to the focus area. Building a Better Society
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IR °
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B8 EEIRBHDAER BEEie
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
|

EEE - +852 2218 8288

{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NAN HAl CORPORATION LIMITED
FRIERARAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nan Hai Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (herein referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 121 to 266, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other assets
attributable to the cash-generating units (“CGUs")

(Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the Group’s critical
accounting estimates and assumptions set out in note 4.1)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had goodwill of HK$4,335,267,000 which is
allocated to the CGUs of culture and media services, innovative business,
enterprise cloud services and property development segments for annual
impairment testing.

The Company’s directors have concluded that there was an impairment loss on
goodwill amounted to HK$585,152,000 and HK$461,769,000 for the CGUs of
culture and media services and innovative business segments respectively. This
conclusion was based on the impairment testing carried out by the
management for these CGUs in accordance with the Group's accounting policy
stated in note 2.19 which is set out in detail in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, which involved significant judgement and assumptions
with respect to the determination of the pre-tax discount rates and the
estimation of the underlying future cash flows.

We identified the impairment testing of goodwill and other assets of the
relevant CGUs as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the impairment testing
involved significant management judgement and estimates as explained
above.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other assets
attributable to the cash-generating units (“CGUs")
(Continued)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
goodwill and other assets attributable to CGUs included:

—  Evaluating the models used by management in the value in use
calculations for impairment testing;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of discount rates and growth rates applied
to the impairment testing;

—  Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry;

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved budget
and considering the reasonableness of the budget;

—  Checking the value in use calculations mathematically;

—  Comparing the actual performance in 2020 with the forecast in 2019;
and

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of a change
in the key assumptions to the recoverable amounts of the CGUs.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

(Refer to note 18 and 48.4 to the consolidated financial statements and the Group’s
accounting policy set out in note 2.11)

As at 31 December 2020, the gross balances of deposits and other receivables
of the Group were HK$2,202,166,000. The Group recognises an impairment
provision based on the expected credit loss ("ECL") approach under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”. We consider this as a key audit matter because the
balances were significant to the consolidated financial statements and the
measurement of ECL requires the application of significant judgement and
estimate, such as expected future cash flows and forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s assessment on impairment
provision of deposits and other receivables included:

—  Considering key internal controls which govern credit control, debt
collection and estimate of expected credit losses;

—  Assessing reasonableness of management’s expected credit loss
allowance by examining the information used by management to form
such judgement and estimate, including relevant historical information;

—  Checking the arithmetic calculation of the expected credit loss
allowance; and

—  Evaluating the reasonableness of the Group's provision for other
receivables by reference to the Group's subsequent collection of other
receivables.

Fair value determination of investment properties

(Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the Group’s
accounting policy set out in note 2.8)

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group's
investment properties amounted to HK$5,161,205,000 as at 31 December 2020
and the Group had recognised a loss on fair value change on investment
properties of HK$34,479,000 in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties was determined by
adopting valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs,
assumptions and judgements with assistance by an independent qualified
valuer.

We have identified the fair value determination of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the financial significance of the amounts and that
significant estimates and judgements are involved in the fair value
determination.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Fair value determination of investment properties
(Continued)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s determination of the fair value
of investment properties included:

—  Reviewing the valuation report from the independent qualified valuer
and holding discussion with management and the independent
qualified valuer to understand the valuation basis, methodology used
and underlying assumptions applied;

—  EBvaluating management'’s process in respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by the independent qualified valuer;

—  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent qualified valuer;

—  Selecting samples from the Group's investment property portfolio and
obtaining the underlying data including comparables of market
transactions used by the independent qualified valuer and assessing
whether these are appropriate; and

—  Performing market research and analysis to assess whether the changes
in fair value of investment properties resulted from the valuation was
reasonable and consistent with market trends to our knowledge.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKASs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accountingpolicies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement
rB &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(ZE 20205 12 A 31 HIEFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Notes (Re-presented)
Liks3 (#eE5)
Revenue == 5(a) 10,010,763 9,321,212
Cost of sales and services provided SHE RIRHARTS 2 AR 8 (5,090,450) (4,138,837)
Gross profit EF 4,920,313 5,182,375
Other operating income H 40 WA 5(b) 895,867 719,751
Selling and marketing expenses HEMTMIGHERERY (1,527,174) (2,525,204)
Administrative expenses THRAX (691,069) (960,119)
Other operating expenses HAbsE E k> (2,208,442) (1,894,248)
Provision for impairment of goodwiill AR E R E 19 (1,046,921) (55,769)
Finance costs BEMNA 7 (1,089,406) (1,368,717)
Expected credit loss (‘ECL") on financial SRMEEZTEHEEEE
assets ([TEEEERE D) (168,301) (46,202)
Fair value change on financial liabilities at 22t B{ENIE AR I
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") (MRARBENERREE])
ZEMABBEANBEEY 29 2,569 24,342
Share of results of associates il NG E S (2,899) (18,992)
Share of results of joint ventures e B XS (1,582) 249
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—MeErE IS 629 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEE (2,572) =
(Loss)/Gain on fair value change on WEMFEAABEES 2
investment properties (E8), W= 14 (34,479) 1,751,377
(Loss)/Profit before income tax Fri8®ian (), wF 8 (953,467) 808,843
Income tax expense FriSHif = 9 (1,576,264) (1,450,269)
Loss for the year FRER (2,529,731) (641,426)
Loss for the year attributable to: U AL EAEFREE :
Owners of the Company RARGEE A (2,281,315) (561,415)
Non-controlling interests IR 2 (248,416) (80,011)
(2,529,731) (641,426)
HK cent HK cent
AL AL
Loss per share for loss attributableto @FRAXATEEAEEEEZ
the owners of the Company BREE
during the year 11
— Basic — H K (3.32) (0.82)
— Diluted — s (3.32) (0.82)

Annual Report 2020 /

R 121



122

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mOoZTOWaBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 20206 12 A31 BIEFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHTT
Loss for the year FAEE
(2,529,731) (641,426)
Other comprehensive income, including Hith2HElzE  BEEFIERE
reclassification adjustments
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to HE#/TEET S EEEmk B ¢
profit or loss:
Fair value change on financial assets at RAREBENEMEERGERE
fair value through other comprehensive (MERAR fﬁfﬁﬁé/ﬁfﬂiﬁqﬁlm&ﬁﬁj)
income (“FVOCI"), net of tax LEREEZAABEE
(HIBRTHIR) 1,387 39,963
Fair value change of properties upon transfer of ¥ ~ = MREEREZ K EVER
property, plant and equipment to investment MEZ AR BEZE - HKRTIE
properties, net of tax 27,899 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to Rt E HE 2 Embk o RE -
profit or loss:
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of };@ﬁiﬁl\%ﬂ‘%ﬁﬁ%iﬁi’%,z%%
financial statements of foreign operations Wzt (E18) 528,268 (226,749)
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of BEGINGEE R R IERR ZE R
financial statements of foreign associates a8,/ (E518) 243 (4,110)
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of BEBIINEEDEVERRZIER
financial statements of foreign joint ventures Wz (EE) 146 (214)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMZAEKEZ  BEEHSIERAR
including reclassification adjustments 557,943 (191,110)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZHEHRZEHE (1,971,788) (832,536)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LT A T FEL 2 EUNSALE
Owners of the Company RNARER A (1,745,780) (753,658)
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RE RS (226,008) (78,878)
(1,971,788) (832,536)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RO B ISAIA N ER R

As at 31 December 2020 720204 12 A31 H

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
B =E FET FHIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB BB 13 7,994,567 9,382,329
Investment properties HEYHE 14 5,161,205 4,787,476
Interests in associates NI - s 16 99,745 102,401
Interests in joint ventures NEERE R 17 3,344 28,498
Amounts due from related parties FEUR A3 5 5RIE 46 175,158 165,959
Financial assets at FVOC| BARBEEREM SRR
ZEREE 21 228,092 226,705
Long term trade receivables REAEWNE 55018 22 - 1,079
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &4 « JB{xt 3138 & H i fE UL 7718 18 527,865 587,011
Intangible assets B ARE 19 5,510,353 6,419,076
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBE E 33 1,674,613 1,338,789
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B R R S R1T17 3K 23 3,828,116 2,647,222
25,203,058 25,686,545
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =g 20 10,007,731 11,913,722
Financial assets at FVTPL RARBENERREE 2
SREE 3,417 6,560
Trade receivables JEW Z 5 7k18 22 429,191 486,166
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %24 - {3038 & H fih fE UL 7718 18 3,253,054 3,413,220
Amounts due from associates FE Ui Bt 25 N B R IR 26(b) 37,025 24,426
Amount due from a joint venture U —REA & ERIE 26(c) 894 836
Amounts due from related parties FE U B & 5 s I8 46 315,639 279,749
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B R Z R IRITER 23 3,423,340 8,330,343
Cash and cash equivalents BHENERIRSER 23 846,539 743,055
18,316,830 25,198,077
Current liabilities mEN B E
Trade payables FENE 5508 24 3,346,896 3,132,872
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNRIERESER 25 1,966,942 1,682,158
Contract liabilities aHBE 4,456,125 9,411,830
Provision for tax TRIE R 6,804,535 4,652,025
Amount due to a director R—BHEEFIB 26(a) 14,271 12,552
Amounts due to associates A= VNGIE S 26(b) 5,575 5,180
Amounts due to related parties R BAE 7 ZI8 46 506,739 232,104
Other employee benefits Hith g 8 &5 30 24,383 28,451
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 27 8,492,053 15,173,454
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 1,321,169 439,400
26,938,688 34,770,026
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (8,621,858) (9.571,949)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBERE 16,581,200 16,114,596
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

#n O B 5 A 0 ¥ =

As at 31 December 2020 72020412 A 31 H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Bt & FET FHTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Long term trade payables REIFETE SRR 24 - 212
Other employee benefits Hith g B &5 30 5,771 36,508
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 27 7,270,990 3,679,580
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 4,749,913 5,607,441
Provision for warranty RIS 32 2,444 2,575
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BEAREBERNERREREZ
TRBE 29 - 2,569
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 33 1,227,406 1,491,382
13,256,524 10,820,267
Net assets EEEE 3,324,676 5,294,329
EQUITY Em
Share capital A& X 34 686,455 686,455
Reserves i 36 2,183,225 4,009,545
Equity attributable to the Company’s AATEE AELER
owners 2,869,680 4,696,000
Non-controlling interests FERER 38 454,996 598,329
Total equity fERBE 3,324,676 5,294,329
On behalf of the Board REE=e
Yu Pun Hoi Liu Rong
TmiE EES
Director Director
EF EF



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BIRENSHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(ZE 20205 12 A 31 HIEFE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZRERE
(Loss)/Profit before income tax Fris®ian (B18) /&5 (953,467) 808,843
Adjustments for: FhNZAE FHE
Interest income FEMBA (216,338) (194,132)
Finance costs AR A 1,089,406 1,368,717
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment ~ ¥)% « BERRETE 1,312,488 1,388,383
Share-based payments expense AR S 2 2,135 2135
(Reversal)/provision of other employee benefits ~ H 4t /E EBF| (B@) / Bf (26,868) 30458
Amortisation of intangible assets other than NEENEENEEERE
goodwill 147,869 144,271
Write-off of property, plant and equipment M - BB MR s 14,896 21,464
Write-off of intangible assets other than goodwill ~ TEIERGE 7 L& i 84 8,657 38,557
Write-off of inventories FEMH 68,215 2,406
ECL on financial assets TREECEREEESRE 168,301 46,202
Provision for impairment of property, plantand ~ #1% - W= R =% 8RB B s
equipment 60,364 15,968
Provision for impairment of intangible assets NEENEZ B EERERE
other than goodwill 2,827 1,507
Provision for impairment of goodwill B RERE 1,046,921 55,769
Provision for impairment of interests in associates AR AR 7] 2 #E R ER 2,598 2,853
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEVE BERRKREZ
equipment, net BE () 8 189,867 (9473)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHE ARz EE 2,572 -
Fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL, net AN BEREBEEREZ SRMEE
ZARBEZEFHE 6,026 (4723)
Fair value change on financial liabilities at FVIPL AR BERERERE S RHAR
ZRRBEEE (2,569) (24,342)
Loss/(Gain) on fair value change on investment  IREME AR BEZHEE (W)
properties 34,479 (1,751,377)
Gain on lease modification HEEF 2 s (120,648) -
Covid-19-Related rent concessions 019F BB mS AR EES (167,687) =
Gain on trading of financial assets at FVTPL BARBERERRRE SHEE
ZBEEWE - (11,286)
Dividend income A& 2 A (1,496) (960)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—HEEE 2 M (629) -
Share of results of associates [EIREE R RIEE 2,899 18992
Share of results of joint ventures e EhEER 1,582 (249)
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & Z &) Al 2 £ 2 7 2,672,400 1,949,983
Decrease in inventories FERD 3,146,091 569,746
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables, deposits, FEWE HFE 4 - AN B R
prepayments and other receivables H A e B g (32 0) 218,319 (481,967)
Increase in trade payables, other payables and T8 S50 « H Ao 5RI8 R FERT
accruals and other employee benefits B A A I H At 2 S AR I3 169,851 1,056,783
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilities AHBECRD) /AL (5,252,363) 4,972,346
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due from FE U BRI A (48h0)
related parties 3,312 (5,224)
(Increase)/Decrease in amount due from a W —FRa B ERIEOEM), R
joint venture (5) 1470
Increase in amounts due from associates P Bt 5 R I A (10,386) (9,727)
Increase in amounts due to related parties REAEB T FIEE M 245,795 57,343
Cash generated from operating activities TR H % 1,193,014 8,110,753
Income taxes paid BRAEH (322,151) (950,392)
Net cash generated from operating activities B TIEH £/ F 5 870,863 7,160,361
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mORENEHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 20206 12 A31 BIEFE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FaE THER TET
Cash flows from investing activities REZH2HENE
Payments to acquire intangible assets BEEFEE MR (84,408) (227,435)
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipmentB& Y13 « iR k& E 2 N3 (203,533) (386,361)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of assets W BB & EEL 2 & H F4E - (2.262)
Decrease in long term deposits, other receivables & H3iR4 « Hfih fE U 0B K FE UL
and amount due from a related party —Z & SRR A 67,645 40,774
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged and restricted BEMRZRERITER
bank deposits R,/ () 4,188,162 (4,207,150)
Interest received BYFIE 184,258 155,425
Increase in guarantee deposits RERE LN (11,408) (4.439)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at FVTPL BANBENERREIE
ZEmEE(Em), m (2,883) 92,042
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  BEREREZ
plant and equipment FTfS 58 - 58,012
Disposal of subsidiaries, net cash disposed of HERBAR EHERSFE (185) -
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HE—FHAENEZEHIE 24,347 -
Dividend received/Investment withdrawal from  EU—EEE AR R —BAEhE
an associate and a joint venture B8 HEsE 816 40,679
Dividend received from financial assets BEREREERE 1,496 960
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 1R & & BIFT1S~ (BTFE) B & 58 4,164,307 (4,439,755)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEEEvRERE 39(c)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREAMEEMERIE 8,878,388 7,148,057
Repayments of bank and other borrowings BEBITREMEE (12,370,534) (6,834,944)
Interest paid BRFE (1,151,928) (1,151,954)
Repayments of capital element of lease liabilities  {&EFHE & EEAREHH (156,962) (387,524)
Repayments of interest element of lease liabilities {EE A& & EF S5 (147,269) (520,743)
Redemption of convertible and exchangeable BB T4 R K AT A ME S
bonds - (1,282,410)
Advance from/(Repayment to) a director RE—REF22HR/ (AW—REEFER) 872 (52,170)
Dividend paid to non-controlling equity holder Al —EIMi B A BIZEERER B A
of a subsidiary THRRE - (38912)
Dividend paid BERRE - (102,968)
Net cash used in financing activities BE LB R %5 (4,947,433) (3,223,568)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekERBSEREM (RD)
cash equivalents R 87,737 (502,962)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M1TAR1AZBRE RERREER 743,055 1,334,598
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, HNESTE RB BN FTIFIR G 2 2
on cash held 15,747 (88,581)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A31B2RERERELER 846,539 743,055
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash BeRERREEREHIN
equivalents
Cash at banks and in hand ROREGERS 846,539 743,055

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / @8R ERA



Equity attributable to the Company’s owners
ARAREAEGRR
Share- Retained
based profits/ Non-
Share Capital General FVOCl  payments Revaluation  Exchange  (Accumulated controlling Total
premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reseve*  reserve* loss}*  Total interests  equity
ROAEE
REH2E
KERE HBRHXH REEH/ FER
B RfEEr EkER -RER 28R 2B EHEE  EXER  (RiER BE BE BEAE
(note34)  (note36)  (note36)  (note36)  (note36)  (note36) (note 36) (note 38)
(Wase)  (Wise)  (Wise)  (Wiise)  (Kfase) (W3 (Hi36) (H38)
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
férn  TEr  TEr TR TEx TEx TEr TEn T fER  TER  TEx

686,455 2,403,004 264,551 43333 - (4419 1410751 4696000 598329 5,294,329
- - - (2,281,315) (2,281,315)  (248,416) (2,529,731)
1,387 27,899 506,249 - 535535 22408 557,943

- 27,899 506,249 (2,281,315) (1,745,780)  (226,008) (1,971,788)

(75,284) -
- 2135

(82,675) - (82675) 82675

686,455 1M 2320329 339,835 44,720 4,448 27,899 391,831 (945,848) 2,869,680 454996 3,324,676
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

MO E R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 20206 12 A31 BIEFE

Equity attributable to the Company's owners

ARAER AEEES
Share-
based Non-
Share Share (apital General FOC  payments  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve® reserve® reserve® profits* Total interests equity
BRABE
nEfEE
VaRE NRHZA F2R
Br ROEE: ARGG —REE Bk BE EiRE REE g B EagE
(note34)  (ote36)  (ote38)  (note3))  (note36)  (ote3d)  (note3) (note 38)
(M) (Witse) (M) (Wstse)  (Merse)  (Wfsise)  (Miese) (Htzt3s8)
HK000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK000 HK'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
Thn TEr TEr TEr TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEr TEn
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R2018E 1231 AR 2019118 686455 1 244804 200454 325 178 118128 274137 6199763 795576 6955339
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 RESI RS ERE 65 F8 - - - - - - - 64008 (604008 (82438) (664
At January 2019 (restated) R19%1 518 (BE3)) 686435 11 244804 200454 325 178 1818 21B1 5595757 6731 6268895
Loss for the year ENER - - - - - - - 61415 (61415 001T)  (641406)
Other comprehensive income Hih2EE B B B B 39963 - (32200 - (1928) 1133 (191,110
Total comprehensive income for the year ENFEREEE = - - - 3983 - (3200 G6l41S) (365 (78878)  (832536)
Transfer to generalreserve YN - - - 62097 - - - (6 - - -
Share-based payments expenses (note 31) ARG 2 i (HE31) - - - - - 213 - - 213 - 213
Acquisiton of non-controling interests WERBAR RS
in subsidiaries - - (9241) - - - (340) - (9.581) 782 (2399
De-recognition of financial assets at FVOC! RIBARALBERNEMZE
hERBEeREE - - - - 114 - - - 14 - 14
Capitalinjection into a non-wholly-owned A-FF2ERRARLE
subsidlary - - (35,799) - - - - - (35,799) 35799 -
Dividends to non-controling interest of A-EHBA Dk RER L
asubsidiary b3 - - - - - - - - - (38912 (38912
Dividends reating to 2018 (note 10) 8BRS (3 10) - - - - - - - (10298 (102968) - (10298)
At 31 December 2019 R019F 128318 686455 1 2403004 264551 £33 2313 (114418) 1410751 469,000 598329 5294329

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / @iz ERA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

87 5 ¥k = Bl 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(ZE 20205 12 A 31 HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nan Hai Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM 10, Bermuda, and its principal place of business is 12/F., The
Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in culture and media services, property development, enterprise cloud
services, news media business and innovative business. Details of the
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 15.

As at 31 December 2020, the directors of the Company consider the
ultimate holding company to be Dadi Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 30 March
2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 121 to 266 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HKS$2,529,731,000
(2019: HK$641,426,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020, and
as of that date, had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$8,621,858,000 (31 December 2019: HK$9,571,949,000). These
conditions may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

1.

—REH

Nan Hai Corporation Limited ( 7 /& 12 i% & &
AR ([ARF]D IR BEREZMKSI 2B
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Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda » H = B & ¥ ith 2%
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FRAR] ([ EEHERFT]) ERET -
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% HFEEEEERABEE - AQFN
BRREZEBFITHRMEES -

R2020F 12 A31 B » KRR RIESFRERR
ERAR AR IERERARF - BRES
MK 2 BR AT ©

HZE2020F 1231 BIEFEZHBERERD
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F 164142600078 70) * BEZE%AH
1S M B B (B F FH498,621,858,0007%5
7T (2019412 A 31 B : 9,571,949,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 20206 12 A31 BIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In view of these conditions, management of the Group has
prepared a cash flow forecast for the next fifteen months after the
end of the reporting period and the Board is of the opinion that
the Group will have sufficient resources to satisfy its future working
capital and other financing requirements over the period covered
by the aforesaid cash flow forecast on the basis that the Group will
be able to renew or replace certain bank and other borrowings
which will be due in the next twelve months. Considering that the
carrying amount of the pledged assets, including certain right-of-
use assets, buildings, other property, plant and equipment,
properties under development and completed properties held for
sale, investment properties, financial asset at FVOCI and pledged
bank deposits amounting to approximately HK$12,673,253,000 (31
December 2019: HK$15,083,273,000) in total, has covered
significant amount of the outstanding principal of the maturing
bank and other borrowings, and the Group has unused credit
facilities amounting to US$100,000,000 which is available till May
2022. Management considered that the Group will have sufficient
funding to support its daily operation in the next twelve months.

Based on the above, the Board considers that it is appropriate to
prepare these consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or
amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group's financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are
used in preparation of the financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.

FEETHREE(K)
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2.2
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(ZE 20205 12 A 31 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBREBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Business combination and basis of consolidation 22 ¥BEHEHEEEBHEE

(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments
to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the
extent that they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 20206 12 A31 BIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest; and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial recognition
plus such non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able to exercise
control. The Group controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee; exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee; and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
without holding the majority of the voting rights. In determining
whether de-facto control exists the Company considers all
relevant facts and circumstances, including:

The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to both the
size and dispersion of other parties who hold voting rights;
Substantive potential voting rights held by the Company
and other parties who hold voting rights;

Other contractual arrangements; and

Historic patterns in voting attendance.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment loss unless the
subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal group. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and
its associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate. The investor's share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. The
results of associates are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable during the year.
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B} %55 ¥R 2% Bit 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 20206 12 A31 BIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the
relevant activities of the arrangement to the Group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as either:

Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only the net
assets of the joint arrangement; or

Joint operations: where the Group has both the rights to
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint arrangements,
the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

The legal form of joint arrangements structured through a
separate vehicle;

The contractual terms of the joint arrangement agreement;
and

Any other facts and circumstances (including any other
contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures in the same
manner as investments in associates (i.e. using the equity method
— see note 2.4).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above the
fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in joint venture. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in a joint venture
has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in
accordance with its contractually conferred rights and obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(ZE 20205 12 A 31 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Joint arrangements (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Results of joint ventures are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable during the year.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in which
they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HKS) at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long term
monetary items forming part of the Group's net investment in the
foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as exchange
reserve.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the exchange reserve relating to that
operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill a